
   
 

 

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2019 

6:00 PM 
 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER BY THE MAYOR 

 

A. Invocation ~ Dr. Vic Young, Pastor, Fountain of Life Bible Church 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

 

 

 

II. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

A. Consideration of the minutes for the regularly scheduled City Commission 

Meeting held on Thursday, November 7, 2019 

 



City Commission Agenda 

November 21, 2019  

Page 2 

 

 

III. PROCLAMATIONS ~ RESOLUTIONS ~ PRESENTATIONS 

 

A. Presentation of Proclamation recognizing Giving Tuesday 

 

B. Turkey Pardon & Turkey Trot Presentation 

 

 

IV. LICENSES 

 

A. Consider a Beer License application for Stellar Acquisitions, LLC, d/b/a Stellar 

Pizzeria, 6681 Bristol Highway, Suite 50, Piney Flats, Tennessee 

 

 

V. STREET CLOSURES 

 

A. December 6, 2019 (Friday):  Johnson City Annual Christmas Tree Lighting 

                                             Street Closure from 8:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

 

 

VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. GENERAL: 

 

i. Consider declaring certain vehicles/equipment as surplus:  

Transit Department:  Ten-(10) Vehicles   

Senior Center:  One-(1) Bus 
(Purchasing Department) 

 

ii. Consider approval of Task Order #8 with S&ME on the K2D Sanitary 

Sewer Rehab Project  (Water & Sewer Services) 

 

iii. Consider approval of the State Revolving Fund (SRF) Program Project 

Loan 2020-441 that includes the Authorizing Resolution, Loan 

Application & Loan Agreement for the Lower Brush Creek Interceptor 

Project  (Water & Sewer Services) 

 

 

 

 



City Commission Agenda 

November 21, 2019  

Page 3 

 

 

B. INVOICES  (FINAL PAYMENTS) 

 

i. Goins Rash Cain, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $8,315.14 

Facilities Management ~ Pay Request #1818-15 

Langston High School Additions & Alterations 

 

ii. Nor-Well Company, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $15,038.50 

Facilities Management ~ Pay Request #8 

Transit Center HVAC Replacement 

 

iii. Eskola, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $40,000.00 

Facilities Management ~ Invoice #6314 

TVA Credit Union Ballpark Field House and Maintenance Building  

Asphalt Roof Replacement 

 

iv. Lloyd’s Electric Service, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  $103,699.57 

Facilities Management ~ Invoice #33600 

Upgrade Electrical Road Show Switch in Arena @ Freedom Hall 

 

 

VII. ORDINANCES (Second Reading) 

 

A. Ordinance 4711-19 

An ordinance to rezone property located at 3230 Greenwood Drive from R-2 

(Low Density Residential) to RP-3 (Planned Residential District) 

 

B. Resolution to annex certain portion of property along Christian Church Road 

known as the “Proffitt Annexation” 

 

C. Ordinance 4710-19 

An ordinance to assign zoning of B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) to property 

known as the “Proffitt Annexation” 

 

D. Ordinance 4713-19 

An ordinance to abandon a public alley located between 218 and 222 North 

Broadway Street 

 

 



City Commission Agenda 

November 21, 2019  

Page 4 

 

 

E. Ordinance 4712-19 

An ordinance to rezone two parcels located at 218 and 222 North Broadway 

Street from I-2 (Heavy Industrial) and R-5 (High Density Residential) Districts 

to B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) District 

 

F. Ordinance 4715-19 

An ordinance to revise Title 5, Chapter 3 Hotel/Motel Transient Occupancy 

Privilege Tax 

 

 

VIII. ORDINANCES (Third Reading) 

 

A. Ordinance 4686-19 

An ordinance to amend the Municipal Code of the City of Johnson City related 

to shared mobility operators and shared mobility platforms 

 

B. Ordinance 4707-19 

An ordinance to prescribe the maximum expenditure which the City Manager 

may make without specific authorization of the Board of Commissioners in 

accordance with Section 45-8 of the Charter of the City of Johnson City and to 

repeal all ordinance and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

 

C. Ordinance 4708-19  

An ordinance to revise, update and add new sections to the Code of the City 

of Johnson City regarding Animal Control by amending Title 10 of the Code 

 

 

IX. CITY MANAGERS REPORT 

 

 

X. PUBLIC INPUT 

 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 



City Commission Agenda 

November 21, 2019  

Page 5 

 

 

XII. INFORMATION 

 

A. Checks signed by the City Manager over $25,000 

B. Appointment of Employees 

C. Monthly Report:  Construction Project Reports ~ November 2019 

D. Monthly Report:  Gas & Diesel Fuel Summary – October 2019 

E. Monthly Report:  Wastewater Treatment Plant Reports – September 2019 

F. Appointment:  Historic Zoning Commission – One-(1) Appointment 

G. Appointment:  Senior Center Foundation Board – Eight-(8) Appointments 

H. Appointment:  Senior Services Advisory Board – Three-(3) Appointments 



 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER BY THE 

MAYOR 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
 

 

 

 



















 

 

PROCLAMATIONS 

RESOLUTIONS & 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

 











 

 

 

 

LICENSES 
 

 

 

 























































































 

 

 

 

STREET CLOSURES 
 

 

 

 













 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

GENERAL 
 

 

 

 









































SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION ________ 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE FINANCING OF THE CONSTRUCTION OF A 
WASTEWATER FACILITIES PROJECT, INCLUDING AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF APPLICATIONS, 
CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENTS, AND OTHER NECESSARY DOCUMENTS, AND MAKING CERTAIN 
REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, AND PLEDGES OF CERTAIN REVENUE IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH 
FINANCING. 
 
WHEREAS, the Johnson City is a public and governmental body in Johnson City (Carter, Sullivan and 
Washington County), Tennessee (the "Local Government"); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Local Government has determined that it is necessary and desirable to undertake certain 
activities or tasks in connection with a wastewater facilities project, Department of Environment and 
Conservation Number  SRF 2020-441 (the "Project"), in and for the Local Government; and 
 
WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated, Section 68-221-1001 et. seq., provide for the lending of funds in 
the wastewater facilities Revolving Loan Fund to Local Governments for the purpose of providing funds for 
project loans; and 
 
WHEREAS, the local Government has determined that it is necessary and advisable to borrow funds for the 
Project pursuant to these sections. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows: 
 
Section 1. Local Government hereby approves the creation of indebtedness on behalf of the Local 
Government in the principal amount of fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000) by the obtaining of a project 
loan. 
 
Section 2. The execution and delivery of the Application for a Project loan in the principal amount of 
fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000) for the purpose of funding all or a portion of the total estimated cost 
of the Project fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000), by Jenny Brock, the Mayor of Johnson City, the Local 
Government, is hereby ratified and approved in all respects. 
 
Section 3. The form, terms, and provisions of the agreement for the Project loan among the Local 
Government, the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local 
Development Authority (the "Loan Agreement"), as presented at this meeting, are hereby approved. 
 
Section 4. The Local Government hereby agrees to honor and accept the method of financing as may 
be determined by the Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 
 
Section 5. The Local Government hereby agrees to make the monthly payments on the Project loan 
in accordance with the Payment Schedule to be attached to the Loan Agreement. 
 
Section 6. The Local Government hereby agrees to levy fees, rates or charges for services provided by 
the Project and/or to levy ad valorem taxes sufficient to pay the interest on and principal of the Project loan 
in accordance with the Loan Agreement.  The Local Government also agrees to levy fees, rates, or charges 
and/or ad valorem taxes sufficient to pay the cost of operation and maintenance of the wastewater system 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

of which the Project is a part, which cost shall include depreciation and all other debt service expense of the 
system. 
 
Section 7. The Local Government assigns and pledges its State-Shared Taxes to the State and 
consents to the withholding and application of State-Shared Taxes in the event of failure by the Local 
Government to remit monthly payments in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement, as the Loan 
Agreement may be supplemented or amended from time to time. 
 
Section 8. The Local Government hereby agrees that there are no local pledges of State-Shared Taxes 
other than those disclosed. 
 
Section 9. The Local Government hereby agrees to obtain alternative methods of financing for all 
costs necessary for the completion of the Project which are in excess of the combined financing provided 
by any agency of the United States Government and by the Tennessee Local Development Authority. 
 
Section 10. The Mayor of the Local Government is authorized and directed to execute the Loan 
Agreement, and any amendments of supplements to the Loan Agreement, in the name and behalf of the 
Local Government; to deliver such  documents to the other parties to such documents, such execution and 
delivery to be conclusive proof of the approval of the Local Government of such documents; and to take 
such further action and to execute and deliver such further instruments or documents as such officer may 
consider necessary or advisable in connection with the Loan Agreement.  Provided, however, this resolution 
shall not be deemed to grant authority to the named officer to approve any increase in the amount of the 
Project loan. 
 
Section 11. All orders, resolutions, or ordinances in conflict with this resolution are and the same are 
repealed insofar as such conflict exists.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
 Duly passed and approved this _________ day of _________________, 2019. 
 
 

 
                 Jenny Brock, Mayor

 
      
WITNESS: 
 
 
 
 

(Affix Seal As Appropriate)  (Name and Title) 
 
 
 
 

CHECK ONE    



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

SRF ___X___  
DWF ______ 

STATE REVOLVING FUND PROGRAM 
APPLICATION FOR PROJECT LOAN 

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
William R. Snodgrass - Tennessee Tower 

312 Rosa L. Parks Avenue, 12th Floor  
Nashville, Tennessee  37243-1102 

Telephone (615) 532-0445 
 

TO BE FILLED IN BY SRFLP OFFICE:
 

SRF 2020-441
 Project Number

 

$15,000,000
Loan Amount

 

$0
Amount of Principal Forgiveness

 

20 years
Term of Loan in Years

 

1.56%  As of October 14, 2019
Bond Buyer Index Rate and Date

 

(1.56 X 80%)=1.25%
Loan Interest Rate

 

Date Loan Approved by Department
 

David W. Salyers, P.E., Commissioner 
Department of Environment & Conservation

  
 City of Johnson City 
 Legal Name of Applicant 
  
 601 E. Main Street, P.O. Box 2150 
 Address 
  
 

Johnson City, TN, 37601 
 City/State/Zip Code 

 
hereby makes application for a Project loan to fund the following described activities or tasks concerning a 
facility (the “Project”). 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Lower Brush Creek 42” Interceptor Sewer 
 
The entire scope of the Project is estimated to cost: $15,000,000
  

Amount of State Revolving Fund Loan Requested: $15,000,000
  

Requested Term of Loan (not to exceed 30 years): 20 years
 
PROGRAM LOANS THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF OUTSTANDING OR APPLIED FOR PROGRAM LOANS 

UNDER THE HEALTH LOAN PROGRAMS OF THE TENNESSEE LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY IS: 

$0
 
PROJECT LOANS THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF OUTSTANDING OR APPLIED FOR PROJECT LOANS 

UNDER THE STATE REVOLVING LOAN FUND IS:  (this application excluded) 
$0

 
 
MUNCIPALITY:   STATE-SHARED TAXES PLEDGED TO PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING OBLIGATIONS 

OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT IN ADDITION TO THE PROGRAM LOANS AND 
PROJECT LOANS LISTED ABOVE: 

TYPE OF TAX 
Sales 
Gasoline 
Beer   
TVA Replacement  
Mixed Drink  
Alcoholic Beverage  
Income Tax 
  
AMOUNT OF STATE-SHARED TAXES RECEIVED IN PRIOR FISCAL YEAR OF THE STATE $9,931,129.00. 
UTILITY DISTRICT/AUTHORITY: A SECURITY DEPOSIT WILL BE REQUIRED IN AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO 
MADS. 
ANTICIPATED MADS: $_______________________________. 
 
 
Jenny Brock, Mayor 
 Name and Title of Authorized Representative 
 
  
Signature  Date 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

REVOLVING FUND LOAN AGREEMENT 
FOR TAX REVENUE ENTITIES 

JOHNSON CITY 
 

This Agreement is among the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation (the "Department"), 
the Tennessee Local Development Authority (the "Authority") and the Johnson City (the "Local 
Government"), which is a Tennessee governmental entity authorized to own, operate, and manage facilities.  
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the financing of all or a portion of a water facility by the Local 
Government.  The Local Government submitted an application for financing 11/21/2019, which is hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement. 
  

1. DEFINITIONS.  Unless the context in this Agreement indicates another meaning, the following 
terms shall have the following meaning: 

 
(a) “Administrative fee” means the fee to be collected by the Authority for administration of the 

loan in accordance with Tenn. Code Ann. Sections 68-221-1004(a) and 68-221-1204(a), both as 
amended; 
 

(b) "Agreement" means this agreement providing financing for the Project from the Fund; 
 

(c) “Facility” means either a wastewater facility or a water system; 
 

(d) “Fund" means: 
 

(1) For wastewater projects, the wastewater revolving loan fund created by the Tennessee 
Wastewater Facilities Act of 1987, Tenn. Code Ann. Sections 68-221-1001, et seq., as 
amended, and rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; or 

 
(2) For water projects, the drinking water revolving loan fund created by the Drinking Water 

Revolving Loan Fund Act of 1997, Tenn. Code Ann. Sections 68-221-1201, et seq., as 
amended, and rules and regulations promulgated thereunder; 

 
(e) "Initiation of Operation" means the date when all but minor components of the Project have 

been built, all treatment equipment is operational and the Project is capable of functioning as 
designed and constructed;  

 
(f) “Local Government” means the governmental entity borrowing under this Agreement 

described in (1) Tenn. Code Ann. Section 68-221-1003(7), as amended, if a wastewater facility 
and (2) Tenn. Code Ann. Section 68-221-1203(6), as amended, if a water system; 
 

(g) “Obligations” means bonds, notes and any other evidence of indebtedness lawfully issued or 
assumed by the Local Government; 

 
(h) "Project" means the activities or tasks concerning a facility described in the application 

submitted by the Local Government to be financed pursuant to this Agreement; 
 

(i) "Project Cost" means the total amount of funds necessary to complete the Project; 
 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

(j) ”Project Loan" means the funds loaned from the Fund to finance the Project and, except for 
principal forgiven, if any, required to be repaid pursuant to this Agreement; 
 

(k) “Revenues” means all fees, rents, tolls, rates, rentals, interest earnings, or other charges 
received or receivable by the Local Government from the water or wastewater system which is 
the Project, or of which the Project is or will be a component, including any revenues derived 
or to be derived by the Local Government from a lease, agreement or contract with any other 
local government, local government instrumentality, the state, or a state or federal agency for 
the use of or in connection with the system, or all other charges to be levied and collected in 
connection with and all other income and receipts of whatever kind or character derived by the 
Local Government from the operation of the system or arising from the system; 

 
(l) "State" means the state of Tennessee acting through the Department and the Authority, jointly 

or separately, as the context requires; 
 

(m) "State-Shared Taxes" has the meaning established by Tenn. Code Ann. Section 4-31-102, as 
amended; and 

 
(n) “Unobligated State-Shared Taxes” means State-Shared Taxes which have not been pledged 

or applied to any other prior indebtedness. 
 
2. PROJECT. 
  

 (a) Description.   
 The description of the Project is as described in the application submitted by the Local 

Government. 
  

(b)  Funding Sources.   
The Local Government estimates the Project Cost to be ($15,000,000) which is expected to 
be funded as follows: 

 
(1) Project Loan (less principal forgiveness) $15,000,000
 
(2) Principal Forgiveness  $0
 
(3) Local Funds $0
 
(4) Other Funds $0
 
 
TOTAL $15,000,000

 
3. LOAN. 
 

(a) Loan and use of proceeds.   
The State shall lend to the Local Government from funds available in the Fund an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed _$15,000,000_to bear interest as described in (b) below. The 
Project Loan shall be used by the Local Government for completion of the Project and in 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

accordance with engineering plans and specifications and special conditions, approved and 
required by the Department and hereby incorporated into this Agreement.  Interest on the 
Project loan will begin to accrue upon the first disbursement of the Project Loan pursuant to 
Section 5 of this Agreement. 

 
(b) Interest rate.   

The rate of interest for this Project Loan is that rate established by the Authority at the meeting 
at which this Project Loan is approved and stated on the payment schedule which is 
incorporated into and attached to this Agreement. 

 
(c) Administrative fee.   

The Authority shall collect a fee equal to 8 basis points of the total Project Loan, where one 
basis point is equal to one-hundredth of one percent (0.01%).   This fee shall be payable in 
monthly installments equal to one-twelfth (1/12) of the annual fee amount as stated on the 
payment schedule. 

 
(d) Payment schedule.   

The Local Government expressly agrees to make all payments of principal and interest in 
accordance with the payment schedule, including the form of payment (currently electronic 
funds transfer), as it is from time to time revised by the State.  A revision of the payment 
schedule shall not be deemed to be an amendment of this Agreement. 

 
4. REPAYMENT OF PROJECT LOAN. 
 

(a) Payments.   
(1) The Local Government promises to repay to the order of the State the Project Loan plus 

interest, payable in installments on the 20th day of each month in accordance with the 
payment schedule established by the Authority and attached to this Agreement.  The 
payment schedule will require payments of interest to begin after the first disbursement 
pursuant to Section 5 of this Agreement.  The payment schedule will require repayments 
of principal to begin the earlier of: 

 
(A) Within ninety (90) days after Initiation of Operation of the Project for construction 

loans or within two (2) years of loan approval for planning and design loans; or  
 
(B) Within one hundred twenty (120) days after ninety percent (90%) of the Project Loan 

has been disbursed.   
 

(2) Notwithstanding Section 4(a)(1), the Authority may agree in the instance of a newly 
created water system to defer the commencement of principal repayment for no more 
than one year after Initiation of Operation of the Project.  

 
(b) Reduction.   

The Project Loan, and the required payments made pursuant to the payment schedule, shall 
be reduced to reflect: 

 
(1) Funding not listed in Section 2(b) which subsequently becomes available; or 

 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

(2) The amount actually disbursed by the State to the Local Government pursuant to the 
Agreement as the Project Loan. 

 
If any of the conditions set out in Section 4(b)(1) or (b)(2) occur, a new payment schedule 
reflecting such changes shall be submitted to the Local Government to be attached to this 
Agreement, superseding any previous schedules.   

 
(c) Prepayment.  

 The Local Government, at its option, may prepay all or any portion of the Project Loan. 
 
(d) Principal Forgiven.   

A portion of the original principal amount of the Project loan may be forgiven by the State. 
The principal forgiven shall be zero percent (0%) of the original principal amount of the project 
loan, or if the full original amount of the Project loan is not used, then zero percent (0%) of the 
amount of the project loan actually disbursed. Notwithstanding Section 3, no interest shall 
accrue on the amount of principal forgiven pursuant to this Section 4(d). 

 
5. DISBURSEMENT OF PROJECT LOAN.   

 
Each request by the Local Government for disbursement of the Project Loan shall constitute a 
certification by the Local Government that all representations made in this Agreement remain true 
as of the date of the request and that no adverse developments affecting the financial condition of 
the Local Government or its ability to complete the Project or to repay the Project Loan plus interest 
have occurred since the date of this Agreement unless specifically disclosed in writing by the Local 
Government in the request for disbursement.  Submitted requests for disbursement must be 
supported by proper invoices and other documentation required by and acceptable to the 
Department and the Authority. 

 
After the Department has certified and the Authority has approved a request for disbursement, the 
Authority will disburse the Project Loan during the progress of the Project.  Each disbursement shall 
be by electronic funds transfer or such other form of payment as specified in the payment schedule 
and shall be equal to that portion of the unpaid principal amount incurred to the date of the Local 
Government's request for disbursement. The amount of any principal forgiven shall be allocated on 
a pro-rata basis to each disbursement made.  
 
No more than 90% of the Project Loan shall be paid to the Local Government prior to the time: 1) 
the construction of the Project has been completed, 2) the facilities constituting the Project are in 
the opinion of the Department in proper operation, and 3) the Project has been approved by the 
Department. Following approval of the Project by the Department, the remaining 10% of the Project 
Loan may be paid to the Local Government. Provided, however, that if this Project Loan is for 
planning or planning and design, payments may be made prior to the completion of construction 
of the Project for the full amount of costs associated with the planning or planning and design. 

 
6. AMENDMENT. 
 

(a) Increase in Project Loan.  
If the final Project Cost is greater than is estimated in Section 2(b), then the Project Loan may 
be increased by a subsequent agreement executed by the parties to this Agreement (the 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ೕ 
 

amount of such increase may be subject to a different interest rate) if the following conditions 
are fulfilled: 

 
(1) Amounts in the Fund are authorized and available for such increase; 
 
(2) The increased Project Loan otherwise meets the applicable statutory requirements and the 

rules adopted thereunder; and 
 

(3) Such increase in this Project Loan does not result in any violation or breach of any contract, 
resolution, or ordinance of the Local Government. 

 
(b) Other Amendments and Modifications.   

Any other amendment or modification of this Agreement must first be approved by the 
Authority and must be in writing executed by the parties to this Agreement. 

 
7. REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT.   
 

The Local Government hereby represents, agrees, and covenants with the State as follows: 
 

(a) To construct, operate, and maintain the Project in accordance, and to comply, with all applicable 
federal and state statutes, rules, regulations, procedural guidelines, and grant conditions; 

 
(b) To comply with: 

 
(i) The Project schedule, engineering plans and specifications, and any and all special 

conditions established and/or revised by the Department; and 
 
(ii)  Any special conditions established and/or revised by the Authority including, but 

not limited to, the Authority’s “State Revolving Fund Policy and Guidance for 
Borrowers” adopted on September 21, 2016, and as may be amended or revised 
from time to time, the terms and conditions of which are adopted by reference as 
if fully set forth herein;   

 
(c) To commence operation of the Project on its completion and not to contract with others for 

the operation and management of, or to discontinue operation or dispose of, the Project 
without the prior written approval of the Department and the Authority; 

 
(d) To provide for the Local Government's share of the cost of the Project; 

 
 

(e) To comply with applicable federal requirements including the laws and executive orders listed 
on Exhibit A to this Agreement; 

 
(f) To advise the Department before applying for federal or other state assistance for the Project; 

 
(g) To establish and maintain adequate financial records for the Project in accordance with 

generally accepted government accounting principles; to cause to be made an annual audit 
acceptable to the Comptroller of the Treasury of the financial records and transactions covering 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ೌ 
 

each fiscal year; and to furnish a copy of such audit to the Authority.  In the event of the failure 
or refusal of the Local Government to have the annual audit prepared, then the Comptroller of 
the Treasury may appoint an accountant or direct the Department of Audit to prepare the audit 
at the expense of the Local Government; 

 
(h) To provide and maintain competent and adequate engineering supervision and inspection of 

the Project to insure that the construction conforms with the engineering plans and 
specifications approved by the Department; 

 
(i) To abide by and honor any further guarantees or granting of security interests as may be 

required by the State which are not in conflict with state or federal law; 
 

(j) To do, file, or cause to be done or filed, any action or statement required to perfect or continue 
the lien(s) or pledge(s) granted or created hereunder; 

 
(k) To establish and collect, and to increase, user fees and charges and/or increase or levy, as the 

case may be, ad valorem taxes as needed to pay the monthly installments due under this 
Agreement, as well as the other costs of operation and maintenance including depreciation and 
debt service of the system of which the Project is a part; 
 

(l) To receive the approval of the Authority prior to issuing any Obligations that are payable all or 
in part from any part of the Revenues if  such Obligations are intended to be on parity or 
superior to the lien position created under this Agreement; 

 
(m) To notify the Assistant Secretary to the Authority in writing prior to issuing any Obligations that 

are payable  all or in part from  any part of the Revenues if such Obligations are intended to be 
subordinate to the lien position created under this Agreement; 
 

(n) To receive the approval of the Authority prior to pledging or encumbering the Local 
Government’s State-Shared Taxes; and 
 

(o) The Local Government is subject to the jurisdiction of the Water and Wastewater Financing 
Board (“WWFB”) established in Tenn. Code Ann. Section 68-221-1008 or of the Utility 
Management Review Board (“UMRB”) created in Tenn. Code Ann. Section 7-82-701 as provided 
by law. If the Authority, in its sole discretion, determines that the Local Government’s 
obligations under this Agreement have been or may be impaired, the Authority may refer the 
Local Government to the WWFB or UMRB (each a “Board”) as appropriate. In the event of 
default under this Agreement, the Authority shall refer the Local Government to the Board 
having jurisdiction over the entity. In such event, the Local Government covenants, to the extent 
permitted by law, to request advisory technical assistance from the Board and to request that 
the Board propose any and all management, fiscal and/or rate changes necessary to enable the 
Local Government to fulfill its obligations to the Authority under this Agreement. The Local 
Government agrees to supply the Board with any information that the Board may request in 
connection with its analysis of the Local Government’s system. The Local Government agrees 
that it will implement any and all technical, management, fiscal and/or rate changes 
recommended by the Board and determined by the Authority to be required for the Local 
Government to fulfill its obligations to the Authority under this Agreement. 

 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್್ 
 

8. SECURITY AND DEFAULT.   
 

(a) As security for payments due under this Agreement, the Local Government pledges users fees 
and charges and/or ad valorem taxes, and covenants and agrees that it shall increase such fees 
or increase or levy, as the case may be, ad valorem taxes as needed to pay the monthly 
installments due under this Agreement, as well as the other costs of operation and maintenance 
of the system, including depreciation.  The Local Government covenants to establish and collect 
such fees and taxes and to make such adjustments to raise funds sufficient to pay such monthly 
payments and costs but to create only a minimum excess.  The Local Government further 
pledges such other additional available sources of Revenues as are necessary to meet the 
obligations of the Local Government under this Agreement. 
 
As further security for payments due under this Agreement, the Local Government pledges and 
assigns subject to the provisions herein its Unobligated State-Shared Taxes in an amount equal 
to the maximum annual debt service requirements under this Agreement. If the Local 
Government fails to remit the monthly payments as established in the payment schedule, the 
Authority shall deliver by certified mail a written notice of such failure to the Local Government 
within 5 days of such failure and the Authority shall suspend making disbursements as provided 
in Section 5 until such delinquency is cured.  If the Local Government fails to cure payment 
delinquency within 60 days of the receipt of such notice, such failure shall constitute an event 
of default under this Agreement and, in addition, the Authority shall notify the Commissioner 
of Finance and Administration of the State of Tennessee of the default of the Local Government 
and the assignment of Unobligated State-Shared Taxes under this Agreement. Upon receipt of 
such notice, the Commissioner shall withhold such sum or part of such sum from any State-
Shared Taxes which are otherwise apportioned to the Local Government and pay only such 
sums necessary to liquidate the delinquency of the Local Government to the Authority for 
deposit into the fund. The Local Government acknowledges that it has no claim on State-Shared 
Taxes withheld as permitted under this Agreement. 
 
If the Local Government breaches any other provision of this Agreement, the Authority shall 
deliver by certified mail a written notice of such breach to the Local Government within 30 days 
of the Authority learning of such breach. The Local Government’s failure to cure the breach 
within 60 days from receipt of notice of such breach shall constitute an event of default under 
this Agreement.  
 

(b) Upon an event of default, the Authority may declare all unpaid principal and interest to be 
immediately due and payable as well as pursue all available legal and equitable remedies. The 
Local Government shall be responsible for all costs that the Authority incurs in enforcing the 
provisions of this Agreement after an event of default, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees. 

 
9. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT.   
 

This Agreement is further conditioned on the receipt of the following documents, in form and 
substance acceptable to the Authority, if applicable, on or before the date of the first disbursement 
of the Project Loan; each document is to be dated or certified, as the case may be, on or before the 
date of the first disbursement of the Project Loan: 

 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

(a) A general certificate of the Local Government certifying the resolution or ordinance authorizing 
the Local Government to enter into this Agreement, the resolution or ordinance authorizing 
the rate and fee structure for the users of the system, and other matters; 

 
(b) An opinion of the attorney or special counsel to the Local Government to the effect that:   
 

(1) The Local Government has been duly created and is validly existing and has full power and 
authority (under its charter and by-laws or general law, if applicable, and other applicable 
statutes) to enter into and carry out the terms of this Agreement; 

 
(2) This Agreement is duly executed and constitutes a valid and binding contract of the Local 

Government, enforceable in accordance with its terms except as the enforceability thereof 
may be limited by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting the enforcement of creditors rights generally;  

 
(3) This Agreement is not in conflict in any material way with any contracts, resolutions or 

ordinances of the Local Government; and  
 

(4) There is no litigation materially adversely affecting this Agreement or the financial 
condition of the Local Government; 

 
(c) An opinion of a licensed engineer or certified public accountant as to the sufficiency of the 

rates, fees and charges and any other fees and charges to meet costs of operation and 
maintenance, including depreciation and all debt service of the Local Government, as set forth 
in Paragraph 7(k) above; 

 
(d) An opinion of a licensed engineer as to the reasonableness of the project costs and as to the 

estimated completion date of the Project; and 
 

(e) A representation of the Local Government as to loans and State-Shared Taxes. 
 

10.  GOVERNING LAW.   
 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state of 
Tennessee.  The Tennessee Claims Commission or the state or federal courts in Tennessee shall be 
the venue for all claims, disputes, or disagreements arising under this Agreement.  The Local 
Government acknowledges and agrees that any rights, claims, or remedies against the State of 
Tennessee or its employees, including but not limited to, the Department, the Authority, and the 
employees thereof, arising under this Agreement shall be subject to and limited to those rights and 
remedies available under Tenn. Code Ann. Title 9, Chapter 8. 

 
11. SEVERABILITY.   

 
In the event any covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable by a final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity thereof shall 
in no way affect any of the other covenants, conditions or provisions hereof. 

 
12. NOTICES.   



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

 
Any notice shall be delivered to the parties at the addresses below (or such other addresses as the 
parties shall specify to each other in writing): 

 
To Department: Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
   State Revolving Fund Loan Program 

    312 Rosa L. Parks Ave, 12th Floor 
    Nashville, TN  37243 
    ATTN:  Administrative/Financial Manager 
 

To Authority:  Tennessee Local Development Authority 
   Cordell Hull Building 

425 Fifth Avenue North  
Nashville, TN 37243-3400 

    ATTN:  Assistant Secretary 
 
 
 
 

To Local Government: City of Johnson City 
   601 E. Main Street, P.O. Box 2150  
   Johnson City, TN 37601 
   Attn: Tom Witherspoon       

  
13. SECTION HEADINGS.   

 
Section headings are provided for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered in 
construing the intent of the parties to this Agreement. 

 
14. EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date on which the Authority approves this 
Agreement as indicated below. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have caused the Agreement to be executed 
by their respective duly authorized representatives. 
 
 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT TENNESSEE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

Name: Johnson City 
 (City) 
  
Signature:  Signature:  
 Jenny Brock, Mayor 
Date:  Date:  
  
  Meeting Approval Date:  
  
  Interest Rate:  

 
    

APPROVED AS TO FUNDING: 
 

 
COMMISSIONER, DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENT AND CONSERVATION 
COMMISSIONER OF FINANCE AND 

ADMINISTRATION 

  
Signature:  Signature:  
 David Salyers, P. E., Commissioner 
Date:  Date:  
  

 
  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

 
 LIST OF CLOSING DOCUMENTS RELATED TO LOAN AGREEMENT 

 
Copy of the Local Government's Application for Project Loan  
 
Loan Conditions 
 
General Certificate with copies of ordinances/resolution approving Loan Agreement and Rate Structure 
 
Opinion as to Sufficiency of Rates, Fees and Charges and Cost and Completion 
 
Representation as to Loans and State-Shared Taxes 
 
Legal Opinion of Attorney or Special Counsel to Local Government 
  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

EXHIBIT A 
FEDERAL LAWS AND EXECUTIVE ORDERS 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL: 

 
Clean Air Act (Pub. L. 101-549, 42 U.S.C. § 7401, et seq.), as amended. 
 
Endangered Species Act (Pub. L. 93-205, 16 U.S.C. § 1531, et seq.), as amended. 
 
Environmental Justice, Executive Order 12898, 59 Fed. Reg. 7629 (1994), as amended. 
 
Floodplain Management, Executive Order 11988 42 Fed Reg. 26951 (1977), as amended by Executive Order 
12148, 44 FR 43239 (1979) (pertaining to Federal Emergency Management) and as further amended by 
Executive Order 13690, 80 FR 6425 (2015), as amended. 
 
Protection of Wetlands, Executive Order 11990, 42 Fed Reg. 26961 (1977), as amended.  
 
Farmland Protection Policy Act, (Pub. L. 97-98, 7 U.S.C. § 4201, et seq.), as amended.  
 
Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act, (Pub. L. 85-624, 16 U.S.C. § 661 et seq.), as amended.  
 
National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, (Pub. L. 113-287, 54 U.S.C. § 300101 et seq.), as amended.  
 
Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, (Pub. L. 114-181, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), as amended. 
 
Safe Drinking Water Act (Title XIV of the Public Health Service Act, Pub. L. 93-523, 42 U.S.C. § 300f et seq.), 
as amended. 
 
Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, (Pub. L. 90-542, 28 U.S.C. § 1271, et seq.), as amended. 
 

ECONOMIC AND MISCELLANEOUS AUTHORITIES: 
 

Demonstration Cities and Metropolitan Development Act of 1966, (Pub. L. 89-754, 42 U.S.C. § 3331, et seq.), 
as amended. 
 
Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs, Executive Order 12372, 47 Fed. Reg. 30959 (1982), as 
amended. 
 
Procurement Prohibitions under Section 306 of Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7606, and Section 508 of Clean 
Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1368, including Executive Order 11738, 38 Fed. Reg. 25161(1973) (Administration of 
Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants and 
Loans), as amended. 
 
Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act (Pub. L. 91-646, 42 U.S.C § 4601, et seq.), as 
amended. 
 
Debarment and Suspension, Executive Order 12549, 51 Fed. Reg. 6370 (1986), as amended. 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

 
Kickbacks from Public Works Employees Prohibited, 18 U.S.C. § 874. 
 
Requirements for Public Work Contractors to Comply with U.S. Dept. of Labor Regulations (Pub. L. 103-322, 
Title XXXIII, § 330016(1)(K), 40 U.S.C. § 3145), as amended.  
 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Pub. L. 111-350, 40 U.S.C. § 3701, et seq.), as amended.  
 

SOCIAL POLICY AUTHORITIES: 
 
Age Discrimination in Employment Act (Pub. L 114-181, 29 U.S.C. § 621, et seq.), as amended. 
 
Title VI of Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, et seq.), as amended, and related anti-
discrimination statues. 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112, 29 U.S.C. § 701), as amended, and Executive 
Order 12250 (45 Fed. Reg. 72995 (1980)).  
 
Equal Employment Opportunity, Executive Order 11246 (30 Fed. Reg. 12319, 12935 (1965)), Executive Order 
11375 (32 Fed. Reg. 14303 (1967)), and Executive Order 13672 (79 Fed. Reg. 42971 (2014)). 
 
Women’s and Minority Business Enterprise Executive Orders 11625 (36 Fed. Reg. 19967 ((1971)), 12138 (44 
Fed. Reg. 29637 (1979)), and 12432 (48 Fed. Reg. 32551 (1983)). 
 
Section 129 of Small Business Administration Reauthorization and Amendment Act (Pub. L. 100-590, 15 USC 
§ 637), as amended. 
 
  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

LOAN CONDITIONS 
 

GENERAL LOAN CONDITIONS 
 

The Local Government hereby agrees to comply with the General Loan Conditions and Special Loan 
Conditions attached to, and made a part of, this Loan Agreement. 
 
1. No date reflected in the loan agreement, or in the project completion schedule, or extension of any 

such date, shall modify any compliance date established in an NPDES Permit.  It is the borrower's 
obligation to request any required modification of applicable permit terms or other enforcement 
requirements. 

 
2. In accordance with federal Executive Order 11625 dated October 13, 1971, and Executive Order 12138 

dated May 18, 1979, the local government must make a good faith effort to include participation from 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) in subagreement awards.  The Minority Business Enterprises 
(MBE) fair share goal is 2.6% for construction and 5.2% for supplies, services and equipment.  The 
Women’s Business Enterprises (WBE) fair share goal is 2.6% for construction and 5.2% for supplies, 
services and equipment. 

 
 The following steps must be utilized in soliciting participation: 
 

a. Include qualified small, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) on solicitation lists. 
 
b. Assure that small, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is solicited. 
 
c. Divide total project requirement, when economically feasible, into small tasks or quantities 

to permit maximum participation of small, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE). 
 
d. Establish delivery schedules, where requirements of the work permit, which will encourage 

participation by small, Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE). 
 
e. Use services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business 

Development Agency of the U. S. Department of Commerce, as appropriate. 
 
f. Require construction contractors to solicit Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE)   

participation utilizing above steps a. through e. 
  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ೕ 
 

g. Require the Loan Recipient to have the Prime Contractor provide EPA Form 6100-2 to any 
DBE Subcontractor(s) that will participate in the construction of the project.  The DBE 
Subcontractor(s) will use this form to describe the work received from the Prime Contractor, 
how much the DBE Subcontractor(s) was/were paid, and describe any other concerns of 
the DBE Subcontractor(s).  The DBE Subcontractor(s) will then mail the completed form(s) 
to the EPA DBE Coordinator; Small and Disadvantaged Business Program; EPA, Region IV; 
Office of Policy and Management; 61 Forsyth Street, SW; Atlanta, GA 30303-8960. 

 
h. Require the Loan Recipient to have the Prime Contractor provide EPA Form 6100-3 to any 

DBE Subcontractor(s) intending to participate in the construction of the project.  The DBE 
Subcontractor(s) will use this form to describe (1) the intended work to be performed for, 
and (2) the price of the work submitted to, the Prime Contractor.  The DBE Subcontractor(s) 
will then submit the completed form(s) to the Loan Recipient as part of an Authority To 
Award (ATA) Bid Package. 

 
i. Require the Loan Recipient to provide EPA Form 6100-4 to the Prime Contractor for 

completion.  The Prime Contractor will use this form to identify each DBE Subcontractor 
that will participate in the construction of the project and the estimated dollar amount of 
each DBE subcontract.  The Prime Contractor will then submit the completed form to the 
Loan Recipient as part of an Authority To Award (ATA) Bid Package. 

 
3. The Local Government will comply with the following: 

 
a. The Local Government must adhere with the most current Wage Rate (Davis-Bacon Act) 

applicable to the project. 
 
b. The bid advertisement for construction must state the wage rate requirements.  The wage rate 

needs to be current at the bid opening. 
 

c. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed) 
and a WH-1321 - Davis-Bacon Poster English and a  WH-1321 - Davis Bacon Poster Spanish 
must be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a 
prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen. 

  
d. The wage rate information can be obtained at www.wdol.gov/.  

 
4. The Local Government will comply with the following new American Iron and Steel requirements: 

 
H.R.3547, “Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014,” (Appropriations Act) was enacted on January 
17, 2014.  This law provides appropriations for both Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) 
and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) for Fiscal Year of 2014, while adding a American 
Iron and Steel requirement to these already existing programs.  H.R. 3547 provides that none of the 
funds made available by a State water pollution control revolving fund as authorized by title VI of 
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1381 et seq.) or made available by a drinking 
water treatment revolving loan fund as authorized by Section 1452 of the Safe Drinking water Act 
(42 U.S.C. 300j-12) shall be used for a project for the construction, alteration, maintenance, or repair 
of a public water system or treatment works unless all of the iron and steel products used in the 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ೌ 
 

project are produced in the United States.  This requirement shall not apply in any case or category 
of cases in which the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) finds that: 

 
a. applying the American Iron and Steel requirements would be inconsistent with the public 

interest; 
 

b. iron and steel products are not produced in the United States in sufficient and reasonably 
available quantities and of a satisfactory quality; or 

 
c. inclusion of iron and steel products produced in the United States will increase the cost of 

the overall project by more than 25 percent. 
 

If the Administrator receives a request for a waiver under this section, the Administrator shall make 
a copy of the request and information concerning the request available to the public and shall allow 
for informal public input on the request for at least 15 days prior to making a finding based on the 
request.  The Administrator shall make the request and other information available on the official 
EPA Internet Web site and by other electronic means. 

 
5. The local government will comply with the following OMB Circular A-133 audit requirements: 

 
The funding for this loan could be disbursed from federal or state sources or both.  Therefore, the 
recipient should consider that all funding received is a federal award and abide by all relevant 
federal and/or state compliance requirements. 

 
 CFDA Title:  Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds  
 CFDA #:  66.458 
 Research and Development Award:  Number 
 Grant Number:  CS47000019 
 Federal Awarding Agency:  Environmental Protection Agency 
 
Confirmations of actual federal funding can be obtained at fiscal year-end from the Tennessee Comptroller 
of the Treasury, Division of Municipal Audit’s Website at http://www.tn.gov/comptroller. 
 
At fiscal year-end, contact state SRF Loan Program for a breakdown by specific grant period(s), number(s), 
and amount(s). 
 
CFR Part 200 – Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards 
 

Section 200.501 states, “A non-Federal entity that expends $750,000 or more during the non-
Federal entity's fiscal year in Federal awards must have a single or program-specific audit conducted 
for that year in accordance with the provisions of this part.” 
 
Section 200.512 states, “(1) The audit must be completed and the data collection form described in 
paragraph (b) of this section and reporting package described in paragraph (c) of this section must 
be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report(s), or nine 
months after the end of the audit period. If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal 
holiday, the reporting package is due the next business day.” 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ ್ 
 

 
Section 200.505 states, “In cases of continued inability or unwillingness to have an audit conducted 
in accordance with this part, Federal agencies and pass-through entities must take appropriate 
action as provided in §200.338 Remedies for noncompliance.” 

 
6. The State of Tennessee and/or The United States Environmental Protection Agency shall have 

access to the official project files and job site. 
 
7. The Local Government will Comply with the Fiscal Sustainability Plan (FSP) requirements set out in 

the FWPCA section 603(d)(1)(E) as follows: 
 

a. develop and implement a Fiscal Sustainability Plan that includes 
 

b. an inventory of critical assets that are a part of the treatment works; 
 
c. an evaluation of the condition and performance of inventoried assets or 

asset groupings; 
 

d. a certification that the recipient has evaluated and will be implementing 
water and  energy conservation efforts as part of the plan; and 

 
e. a plan for maintaining, repairing, and as necessary, replacing the 

treatment works and a plan for funding such activities; or 
 
f. certify that the recipient has developed and implemented a plan that 

meets the requirements under clause(i); 
 

 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

SPECIAL LOAN CONDITIONS 
  
  
The following project schedule is established:  
 

a. Submission of engineering plans and specifications on or before 07/23/2019 (submitted 
to SRF). 

b. Start construction on or before 04/20/2020. 
c. Initiate operation on or before 10/20/2021. 
d. Complete construction on or before 12/19/2021. 

 
The State Revolving Fund Loan Program may amend the project schedule above upon written request and 
for good cause shown. 

 
Failure to adhere to the project schedule established above, or secure an amended project schedule from 
the State Revolving Fund Loan Program, will constitute a breach of contract pursuant to Division Rule 0400-
46-06-.07(10) and may result in loss of principal forgiveness, loss of interest rate reduction or both. 

 
The State Revolving Fund Loan Program may take other such actions as may be necessary relative to breach 
of contract against a borrower that fails to carry out its obligations under Chapter 0400-46-06 and this loan 
agreement up to and including cancellation of loan funding. 
 
 
  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

GENERAL CERTIFICATE 
 
 
 

The undersigned, Jenny Brock, Mayor of Johnson City, Tennessee (“Local Government”), CERTIFIES as 
follows: 
 

1. The Local Government is a validly created and duly organized and existing subdivision of 
the State of Tennessee. 

 
2. The resolution or ordinance of the Local Government duly adopted 11/21/2019, a copy of 

which is attached, authorizing the undersigned to execute in the name and behalf of the 
Local Government all documents in connection with the Project Loan with the State of 
Tennessee to finance a project under the Wastewater Facilities Act of 1987 (“Project”) has 
not been amended, modified, supplemented or rescinded since its date of adoption. 

 
3. The resolution or ordinance of the Local Government duly adopted on 11/21/2019, a copy 

of which is attached, establishing the rate and fee structure for the wastewater system of 
which the Project is a part has not been amended, modified, supplemented or rescinded 
since its date of adoption. 

 
4. The Local Government is aware that each request for disbursement submitted pursuant to 

Section 5 of the Project Loan Agreement constitutes a reaffirmation by the Local 
Government as to the continuing truth and completeness of the statements and 
representations contained in the Project Loan Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS OF THE CERTIFICATE, the undersigned has executed this certificate and affixed the 
seal, if any, of the Local Government on this __________ day of ___________________, 2019.  
 
 
S-E-A-L 
 

 
 

Jenny Brock, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
Name:  
  

Title:  
 
  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

(PLEASE TYPE ON CITY ATTORNEY’S LETTERHEAD) 
(MUST BE SIGNED ON OR AFTER THE DATE OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT SIGNATURE) 

 
(insert date) 
 
 
Tennessee Local Development Authority and  
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
Attention: State Revolving Fund Loan Program 
Rosa L Parks Ave, 12th Floor 
Nashville, TN  37243 
 
RE: Johnson City (Carter, Sullivan and Washington County) 
 SRF 2020-441, Loan Application 
 Project: Lower Brush Creek Sewer Interceptor Replacements 
 
Dear Madam/Sir: 
 
I am the City Attorney for Johnson City, Tennessee and I have reviewed the Revolving Fund Loan 
Agreement for the above referenced project (the “Agreement”) in the amount of $15,000,000.   
 
Pursuant to provisions of Paragraph 9 of the Loan Agreement, you have requested that the Johnson City 
furnish you with my opinion as to certain matters.  It is my opinion that: 
 
1. The Johnson City, Tennessee, a municipality, has been duly created and is validly existing and has 

full power and authority (under its Charter and By-laws or general law, if applicable, and other 
applicable statutes) to enter into and carry out the terms of the Agreement; 

 
2. The Agreement is duly executed and constitutes a valid and binding contract to the Johnson City, 

Tennessee, a municipality, enforceable in accordance with its terms except as the enforceability 
thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium or similar laws 
affecting the enforcement of creditors rights generally; 

 
3. The Agreement is not in conflict in any material way with any contracts or ordinances of the Johnson 

City, Tennessee, a municipality; and 
 
4. There is no litigation materially adversely affecting the Agreement or the financial condition of the 

Johnson City, Tennessee, a municipality. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Name, Title 
Firm 
  





SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

(PLEASE TYPE ON ENGINEER’S LETTERHEAD) 
(MUST BE SIGNED ON OR AFTER THE DATE OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT SIGNATURE) 

 
(insert date) 
 
 
Tennessee Local Development Authority and  
Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 
Attention: State Revolving Fund Loan Program 
Rosa L Parks Ave, 12th Floor 
Nashville, TN  37243 
 
RE: Johnson City (Carter, Sullivan and Washington County) 
 SRF 2020-441, Loan Application 
 Project: Lower Brush Creek Sewer Interceptor Replacements 
 
Dear Madam/Sir: 
 
We are the consulting engineers for the Johnson City, Tennessee.  Pursuant to Paragraph 9 of the Revolving 
Fund Loan Agreement in the amount of $15,000,000 to finance the above referenced project, you have 
requested that the Johnson City furnish you with our opinion as to certain matters.  We are of the opinion: 
 
1. The user charges implemented by the City are sufficient based on a Rate Study dated (insert date 

of rate study) to meet costs of operation and maintenance including depreciation and all debt 
service of the system; and 

 
2. The estimated project costs are reasonable; and 
 
3. The estimated completion date of the Project will be (insert date project completion date). 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Name, Title 
Firm 
  



 

 

Jo
b 

no
 

hazenandsawyer.com 

Hazen and Sawyer 
800 S. Gay Street, Suite 700  
Knoxville, TN, 37939 • 865.766.4034 

 

November 21, 2019  

Tennessee Local Development Authority and  

Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation 

Attention: State Revolving Fund Loan Program 

Rosa L Parks Ave, 12th Floor  

Nashville, TN  37243 

Re:  Johnson City (Carter, Sullivan and Washington County) 

 SRF 2020-441, Loan Application 

 Project: Lower Brush Creek Sewer Interceptor Replacements 

Dear Madame/Sir: 

All We are the consulting engineers for the Johnson City, Tennessee.  Pursuant to Paragraph 9 of the 

Revolving Fund Loan Agreement in the amount of $15,000,000 to finance the above referenced project, 

you have requested that the Johnson City furnish you with our opinion as to certain matters.  We are of 

the opinion: 

1. The user charges implemented by the City are sufficient based on a Rate Study dated (insert date 

of rate study) to meet costs of operation and maintenance including depreciation and all debt 

service of the system; and 

2. The estimated project costs are reasonable; and is $17,000,000.00 per Alternate 4 of the 

submitted Facilities Plan.  

3. The estimated completion date of the Project will be December 19, 2021.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Mike Orr, PE      

Senior Associate     
 

 

 
cc: (optional) 
 

 



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

REPRESENTATION OF  
LOANS AND STATE-SHARED TAXES 

FOR TAX REVENUE ENTITIES 
JOHNSON CITY (CARTER, SULLIVAN AND WASHINGTON COUNTIES), TENNESSEE 

SRF 2020-441 
 
As security for payments due under a SRF loan agreement, a local government pledges user fees and 
charges and ad valorem taxes as necessary to meet its obligations under a SRF loan agreement. As an 
additional security for such payments due, a local government pledges and assigns its unobligated state-
shared taxes (SSTs) in an amount equal to maximum annual debt service (MADS) requirements. 
 
1. State-Shared Taxes  

The total amount of SSTs, as identified pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. 4-31-105(c)(2), received by the 
local government in the prior fiscal year of the State is $9,931,129.00. 
 

2. Prior Obligations 
(a.) Prior SRF loans which have been funded or approved for which the Local Government has pledged 
its SSTs are as follows: 

Loan Type Loan # Base Loan* Principal 
Forgiveness* 

MADS** 

SRF/Sewer   
SRF/Water   

* If applicable, the original approved amount is adjusted for decreases and approved increases  
 **MADS is an estimate until final expenses have been determined 
 

The total MADS from section 2(a.) having a lien on SSTs is $0. 
 

(b.) Other prior obligations which have been funded or approved for which the local government has 
pledged its SSTs are as follows: 

Type of Obligation Identifying # Loan Amount Principal 
Forgiveness 

MADS 

QZAB/QSCB QSCB BFC06000 $8,160,000.00 $0.00 $1,165,306.09
TLDA/Public Health     
TLDA/Transportation     

 
The total MADS from section 2(b.) having a lien on SSTs is $1,165,306.09. 

 
(c.) The total MADS from prior obligations having a lien on SSTs [subsections 2(a)+2(b)] is $1,165,306.09.  
 

3. Loan Requests 
The loan(s) which have been applied for and for which state-shared taxes will be pledged: 

 
Loan Type Loan # Anticipated 

Interest Rate 
Base Loan Principal 

Forgiveness 
Anticipated 

MADS 
SRF/Sewer SRF 2020-441 1.25% $15,000,000.00 $0.00 $848,041.00



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

 
The anticipated total maximum annual pledge of state-shared taxes pursuant to loan request(s) is 
$848,041.00. 
 
4. Unobligated SSTs 
The amount set forth in section (1) less the total amounts set forth in sections 2 and 3 is $7,917,781.91. 
 
 
The Local government hereby represents the information presented above is accurate and 
understands that funding for the loan request(s) presented is contingent upon approval by the TLDA.  
 
Duly signed by an authorized representative of the Local Government on this __________ day 
of__________, 2019. 
 
This is the Comptroller’s certificate as required by TCA 4-31-108.    
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 
    

BY:  
Jenny Brock, Mayor  

  



SRF CW Loan Application – Revised ೌ-್-್ೕ  
 

REQUIREMENT FOR REPORT ON DEBT OBLIGATION 
(FORM CT-0253) 

 
Pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-151, a Report on Debt Obligation (the “Report”) must be prepared for 
all debt obligations issued or entered into by any public entity and filed with its governing body with a copy 
sent to the Office of State and Local Finance/Comptroller of the Treasury for the State of Tennessee. The 
purpose of the Report is to provide clear and concise information to members of the governing or legislative 
body that authorized and is responsible for the debt issued.  
Public entities that fail to comply with the requirements of Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-151 are not permitted 
to enter into any further debt obligations until they have complied with the law. A State Revolving Fund 
(SRF) loan program applicant that is not in compliance with this law should file the Report as soon as 
possible and provide notification of filing to the SRF loan program so that they may proceed with the loan 
application. Instructions on how to file the Report are located in the “Debt” category for “Local Finance” on 
the website of the Tennessee Comptroller of the Treasury. 
 
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) – Required Disclosure 
 
Local governments that issue municipal securities on or after February 27, 2019, should be aware that the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) adopted amendments to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities 
Exchange Act that require reporting on material financial obligations that could impact an issuer’s financial 
condition or security holder’s rights.  The amendments add two events to the list of events that must be 
included in any continuing disclosure agreement that is entered into after the compliance date: 
 

 Incurrence of a financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, if material, or agreement to 
covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a financial obligation 
of the issuer or obligated person, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 
 

 Default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events 
under the terms of the financial obligation of the issuer or obligated person, any of which reflect 
financial difficulties.  

 
To learn how to report these new disclosures please refer to the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access 
EMMA® website (emma.msrb.org).  
 
The applicant, City of Johnson City, attests that it is in compliance with Tenn. Code Ann. § 9-21-151 
for its debt obligations and understands that the Report is required to be filed once the SRF loan has 
been approved by the Tennessee Local Development Authority and the agreement has been 
executed by the borrower. The applicant further acknowledges that it may be responsible to perform 
continuing disclosure undertakings related to SEC Rule 15c2-12. Local governments should always 
consult bond counsel in order to obtain advice on appropriate disclosures related this rule.  
 
  
Jenny Brock, Mayor  Date 

 



 

 

 

 

INVOICES 
 

 

 

 































 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES 

SECOND READING 
 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019 

 
 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services – Planning 
 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 4711-19 – to rezone a piece of property located at 3230 

Greenwood Drive, from R-2 (Low Density Residential) to RP-3 (Planned Residential 

District). Second Reading. 

 
 

SUMMARY: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission unanimously approved 

this rezoning on October 8, 2019. 

The applicant is Site Constructions Inc. and it is represented by its President, Tim Carter. 

The purpose of the rezoning is to construct a 66-lot single family residential major 

subdivision. The RP-3 Zoning District permits at most 8.50du/ac. The 11.62-acre lot will 

permit up to 98 dwelling units if rezoned as requested. The developer proposes 66 

dwelling units. Thus, the proposed density of the site will be 5.67du/ac. In this regard, the 

development will be within, and below, the permitted density in the RP-3 Zoning District. 

A Concept Plan is required for the rezoning. The submitted Concept Plan meets all 
requirements of the Johnson City Zoning Ordinance. 

The required Neighborhood Meeting was conducted on Friday, October 4, 2019. Staff 

mailed notification letters to all property owners within 200ft of the subject property. A 

Rezoning notification sign was posted at the property. 

The rezoning request is consistent with the Future Land Use Map, which designates the 

property for residential development. The rezoning and the associated concept plan 

design will not add traffic on Willow Springs Drive beyond the street’s regulatory and As- 

Built capacities, and will neither negatively affect the overarching transportation network 

in the area, nor the single-family living character of the surrounding area. 

The ordinance is ready for your consideration. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission recommends 

that the City Commission rezones the property from R-2 to RP-3, and the concept plan as 

submitted. 



ORDINANCE NO. 4711-19 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE 
CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE BEING PART OF 
THE APPENDIX TO ORDINANCE NO. 1519 ENTITLED 
“AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A CODE OF LAWS AND 
ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, 
TENNESSEE, AND TO REPEAL ALL LAWS AND 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH”, AND 
AMENDATORY THEREOF, BY CHANGING FROM R-2 
(LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT TO RP-3 
(PLANNED RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT CERTAIN 
PROPERTY (TAX MAP 061, PARCEL 240.01) LOCATED 
AT 3230 GREENWOOD DR. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. That the Zoning Map of the city of Johnson City, Tennessee, 

being a part of the appendix to Ordinance No. 1519 entitled, "An Ordinance to Adopt a 
Code of Laws and Ordinances for the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, and to Repeal All 
Laws and Ordinances in Conflict Therewith," and all ordinances supplementary thereto and 
amendatory thereof, be and the same is hereby amended and modified by changing the 
zoning on property identified in the City of Johnson City and Washington County as 
County ID 090, Tax Map 061, Parcel 240.01, including those abutting rights-of-way and 
reaching to the respective centerlines from R-2 (Low Density Residential) District to RP-3 
(Planned Residential) District. 

 
See zoning map of the above-described property marked “Exhibit ‘A’” hereto. 
See Concept Plan for the property marked “Exhibit ‘B’” hereto 

 
SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, That all ordinances and  

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, That this ordinance shall 
take effect from and after its passage on third and final reading and publication as required 
by law, the public welfare requiring it. 

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING 11-07-2019  

 

PASSED ON SECOND READING    
 

PASSED ON THIRD READING    



 
 
 

APPROVED AND SIGNED IN OPEN MEETING 
 

ON THE  DAY OF  , 20 
 
 
 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 

City Recorder 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

City Attorney 



“Exhibit ‘A’” 
Property Map 

 



“Exhibit  ‘B’” 
Concept Plan 

 



REZONING REQUEST #1047 
Villas at Willow Springs Rezoning 

 
 
 

PETITIONER: Tim Carter 
 

OWNER: Site Constructions, Inc. 
 

PROJECT NO: PL201900347 
 

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning of property located at 3230 Greenwood Dr. 
from R-2 (Low Density Residential District) to RP-3 
(Planned Residential) District. 

 
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant 

 
PROPOSED USE: The petitioner proposes a major subdivision of the 

property that will involve the construction of new streets, 
extension of utilities, stormwater management and the 
creation of 67 single family residential lots as shown on 
the attached concept plan. 

 
SURROUNDING LAND USES & ZONING: 

 
NORTH: Single-Family Residential Planned 

Unit Development 
RP-3 (Planned Residential District) 

WEST: Single-Family Residential Planned 
Unit Development 

RP-3 (Planned Residential District) 

SOUTH: Street (Greenwood Dr), with a 
Church, two multi-family 
residential developments and a 
single-family house across the 
street 

R-3 (Medium Density Residential) for 
properties in the City 

NORTHEAST Single-Family Residential Houses 
on individual lots 

R-2 (Low Density Residential) 

EAST: Multi-family residential R-4 (Medium Density Residential) 



 
 

Surrounding Zoning Classification 



LAND USE PLAN: The 2020 Land Use Plan calls for the property to be used 
for residential development. The proposed single family 
subdivision aligns with this plan. 

Future Land Use Map of the Tim Carter Property Proposed for Rezoning 
 

The City also provides in the Comprehensive Plan 2020 
vision statement that it shall seek to “Ensure housing 
opportunities for all citizens of the City that are varied in 
location, type, and cost.” It is also a policy of the City in the 
land use plan to locate low density housing along local 
streets such as those proposed for the subdivision. 



LAND USE 
COMPATIBILITY: The requested RP-3 zoning district shall be the same as 

that of the adjoining Willows Spring subdivision to the west 
and north of the property. The proposed single-family 
houses on individual lots shall likewise be compatible with 
the adjoining single-family residential development in the 
northeast of the property. Generally, the proposed 
residential development is compatible with surrounding land 
uses. 

 
 

 
Neighborhood Land Use Map 



UTILITIES: There are existing water and sewer lines along Greenwood 
Dr and Willow Springs Rd. It shall be the responsibility of 
the developer to extend these utilities into the site for the 
development of the subdivision in accordance with the 
Johnson City Regional Planning Commission Subdivision 
Regulations and City policy. 

 
TRANSPORTATION: The subject property has frontage on Willow Springs Dr. 

and Greenwood Dr. Willow Springs Dr is a local street 
designed and built to handle 240 to 1,500 car trips per day. 
Staff carried out field traffic counts from October 22 to 
October 28, 2019. Willow Springs Dr currently has a 
maximum of 513 car trips per day. Per Institute of 
Transportation Engineering (ITE) standards, households 
make an average of 9.85 car trips per day from Monday to 
Saturday. This implies that it will take up to 100 (one 
hundred) additional residential units or houses for Willow 
Springs Dr to reach its full design and as-built capacity. In 
this regard, traffic congestion can be expected on this road 
with the addition of up to 100 dwelling units. The developer 
proposes 66 dwelling units, which is below the 100 houses 
threshold. 

 
 

PHYSICAL 
CHARACTERISTICS: The property has a challenging undulating topography 

based on the previously created stormwater management 
system on this site in relation to the developed Willows 
Springs subdivision. 

 

Undulating site topography 
 

Staff has reviewed the proposed concept plan with 
comments relating to stormwater management as provided 
in the Concept Plan section of this report. 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS: The petitioner held the required Neighborhood Meeting on 
Friday, October 4, 2019. 



Staff received calls from many residents in the 
neighborhood. Citizens expressed concerns over potential 
stormwater and traffic congestion on Willow Springs Dr. 
Others voiced concerns on the price points of the houses to 
be built affecting their property values. 

 
Stormwater issues will be addressed in the subdivision 
construction plans. City regulations require the net flow off 
the site to be zero. Furthermore, because the developer will 
disturb more than 1 acre of land, stormwater quality control 
shall be required. Concerns related to traffic congestion on 
Willow Springs Dr have been addressed under 
“Transportation” in this report. It is illegal exclusionary 
zoning to attempt using zoning to determine and control the 
prices of houses in neighborhoods. To act otherwise 
constitutes using legislative power to exclude those who 
cannot afford some houses from living in some 
neighborhoods. 

 
 

CONCEPT PLAN: A Concept Plan for this rezoning request is required, per 
Section 14.3 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Plan depicts the 
proposed lot lines, proposed streets, number of lots, lot 
frontage, proposed zoning, open space, and stormwater 
management ponds areas. The requested RP-3 zoning 
district requires that at least 15% of the property be 
allocated as open space. 

 
Below is a concept plan of the proposed development. 



 
Concept Plan of the Cottages at Chestnut Cove Rezoning 



The plan meets concept plan requirements in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
It is important to note that because the development plan is 
for a major subdivision, the subdivision review and approval 
process will still apply to this development after approval of 
the concept plan. In this regard, details of such elements as 
street design, stormwater management, and utilities 
construction will be fully addressed in the subdivision review 
and approval process. 

 
 

DENSITY REQUIREMENT: The RP-3 Zoning District permits at most 8.5du/ac. The lot 
is 11.62acres, which will permit up to 98dwelling units. The 
developer proposes 67du; thus, the proposed density of the 
site will be 5.8du/ac. In this regard, the development will be 
within the permitted density in the RP-3 Zoning District. 

 
 

OPTIONS: The Planning Commission’s options are as follows: 
1. Approve the rezoning, and associated Concept Plan, as requested. 
2. Approve the rezoning and associated Concept Plan with conditions 
3. Disapprove the rezoning and state the reasons for denial in writing. 
4. Postpone action pending the receipt of additional information. 

 
 
 

STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
 
1. The proposed development aligns with the general single- 

family character of the area 
2. The development as proposed does not pose public safety 

problems such as sight distance issues and traffic 
congestion hazards. 

3. The proposed land use category (residential) aligns with the 
Comprehensive Plan 2020 vision and housing development 
policies. 

Based on the above three elements, staff recommends 
approval of the rezoning of the property from R-2 to RP-3, and 
approval of the concept plan as submitted. 



SITE AERIAL VIEW 



Site Pictures 
 

View Eastward 
 

Wet weather conveyance on site (View from Willow Springs Dr) 



 
Northeastward view of the site – from Greenwood Dr 

 

Northwestward view of the site – from Greenwood Dr 



AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019 

 
 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services – Planning 
 

APPLICATION #: PL201900369 
 

SUBJECT: Resolution of the Proffitt Annexation - to annex certain property 
known as the “PROFFITT ANNEXATION.” Second Reading. 

SUMMARY: This is an owner-initiated annexation of 3.008 acres, part of a lot located 
along Christian Church Rd (a Portion of Tax Map 028, Parcel 065.00). The property is 
located within both the Urban Services Area and the Urban Growth Boundary, and it 
adjoins current City limits. 

The property is proposed to be used for a non-residential substance abuse treatment facility. 
The Planning Commission has recommended the assignment of the RTP (Research 
Technology Park) Zoning District to the site. However, the City Commission unanimously voted 
in favor of the B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) Zoning District on first reading. 

Water and sewer services are currently not available to the property, and the City will 
need to extend these services to the site. 

The provision of all other services shall begin on the effective date of the annexation in 
accordance with City policies. 

The Fiscal Impact Analysis employs the Employment Anticipation Method, which makes 
three assumptions: the level of local commercial employment directly affects the 
magnitude of local expenditures; commercial development impacts municipal 
expenditures within a multivariate context; and this impact varies depending on the 
direction of growth in the City. The total recurring net fund is estimated to be $1,301.63. 
This excludes capital improvement cost and user charges revenue for utilities such as 
water and sewer. 

 
It is further estimated that it will cost $33,000 to extend water, and $98,000 to extend 
sewer to the site. It should be noted that the water and sewer lines to be extended can 
potentially serve other properties in the area. 

 
The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission recommended approval of this 
annexation, Plan of Services, and assignment of the RTP Zoning District at their 
October 8, 2019 meeting. 

This resolution is ready for your consideration. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommends annexation of 
the property into the corporate limits of Johnson City, TN. 



RESOLUTION – PROFFITT ANNEXATION 
(SEE ALSO ORDINANCE NO. 4710-19) 

 
A RESOLUTION TO ANNEX A PORTION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY 
LOCATED WITHIN THE ELEVENTH (11TH) CIVIL DISTRICT OF 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE ADJOINING THE PRESENT 
CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, 
TENNESSEE, AND TO INCORPORATE THE SAME WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, 
TENNESSEE, SAID PROPERTY BEING KNOWN AS THE 
“PROFFITT ANNEXATION;” TO ZONE SAID PROPERTY B-4 
(PLANNED ARTERIAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT AS DESCRIBED 
HEREIN; AND TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE ACCORDINGLY, BEING A PART OF 
THE APPENDIX TO ORDINANCE NO. 1519. 

 
WHEREAS, the annexation of such territory is deemed necessary for the 

welfare of the territory as well as for the welfare of the city as a whole; and 

WHEREAS, the Johnson City Regional Planning Commission has considered 
and approved the area for annexation during regular session on October 8, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Johnson City Regional Planning Commission has considered 
and recommended a Plan of Services for the area during regular session on October 8, 2019, a 
copy of which is attached hereto;  

WHEREAS, the Johnson City Regional Planning Commission has considered 
and recommended a proposal for zoning said property RTP (Research/Technology Park) during 
regular session on October 8, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, the Johnson City Board of Commissioners has determined that it 
is more appropriate to zone said property B-4 (Planned Arterial Business District) 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF JOHNSON 

CITY AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Pursuant to authority conferred by Chapter 113, Public Acts of 
Tennessee, 1955, there is hereby annexed to the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, and 
incorporated within the corporate boundaries thereof, the following described territory 
adjoining the present corporate boundaries and situated, lying and being in the Eleventh (11th) 
Civil District of Washington County, Tennessee. 

See description marked "Exhibit 'A'" hereto. 

See map of the above-described property marked "Exhibit 'B'" hereto. 

See Plan of Services marked “Exhibit ‘C’” hereto. 

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the area herein described 
and annexed be zoned B-4, Planned Arterial Business District (See also Ordinance 4701- 19). 



SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall become operative from 
and after its passage as provided in Chapter 113, Public Acts of Tennessee, 1955, and Chapter 1101, 
Public Acts of Tennessee, 1998 as supplemented and amended. 

 
 

PASSED ON FIRST READING  11-07-2019                                 
PASSED ON SECOND READING                              
PASSED ON THIRD READING    

 

APPROVED AND SIGNED IN OPEN MEETING 
ON THE  DAY OF  , 20   

 
 

MAYOR 
ATTEST: 

 
 

City Recorder 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

Staff Attorney 



“EXHIBIT ‘A’” 
 



“EXHIBIT ‘B’” 
 



“EXHIBIT ‘C’” 
 

ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY ADJOINING CHRISTIAN CHURCH RD 
THE PROFFITT ANNEXATION 

A PORTION OF TAX MAP 028 PARCEL 065.00 

PLAN OF SERVICES 

 
A. Police 

 

Johnson City Police Services will be provided in accordance with City policies 
from the effective date of annexation. 

 
B. Fire Protection 

 

Johnson City Fire protection within the limitations of available water and 
distances from fire stations, will be provided from the effective date of 
annexation. 

 
C. Water Service 

 

Public water service is currently unavailable to the property. The City of Johnson 
City shall extend water service to the property within five years of the effective 
date of annexation or sooner if development warrants. 

 
D. Sewer Service 

 

Public sewer service is currently unavailable to the property. The City of Johnson 
City shall extend sewer service to the property within five years of the effective 
date of annexation or sooner if development warrants. 

 
E. Electrical Service 

 

Electrical service will be provided by Brightridge. 
 

F. Schools 
 

School bus service will be provided in accordance with city policy from the start 
date of the Johnson City public schools 2020/2021 academic year. 

 
G. Refuse Collection 

 

Regular weekly refuse collection service will be provided to the property and any 
future development on it from the effective date of annexation. 



H. Streets 
 

Street signs and street maintenance will be provided in accordance with city 
policies from the effective date of annexation. 

 
I. Street Lights 

 

Street lights will be provided in accordance with city policies from the effective 
date of the annexation. 

 
 

J. Inspections 
 

Inspection services provided by the city (building, electrical, plumbing, sanitation, 
zoning, etc.) will be extended to the annexed area on the effective date of 
annexation. 

 
K. Planning and Zoning 

 

The city's planning and land use control authority as authorized by state law will 
be extended to the annexed area on the effective date of annexation. This will 
include the land use policy and the administration and enforcement of zoning and 
subdivision regulations. The property shall be zoned B-4 (Planned Arterial 
Business District) subject to changes in accordance with applicable law and city 
policies. 

 
L. Transit 

 

The Patron Taxi Service and the Paratransit Van Service for the elderly and 
handicapped is currently serving the area. Users must possess a valid Johnson 
City Transit photo identification card. 

 
M.  Senior Citizens’ Center 

 

Facilities and services of the Johnson City Senior Citizens' Center are presently 
available to the residents of the area, and will continue upon annexation in 
accordance with City Policy. 

 
N. Recreation 

 

Policies and standards presently in effect within the present city will be utilized in 
expanding the recreation program and facilities to the annexed area when 
determined by the City of Johnson City to be necessary and feasible in 
accordance with City policies. 



ANNEXATION OF PROPERTY ADJOINING CHRISTIAN CHURCH RD 
THE PROFFITT ANNEXATION 

A PORTION OF TAX MAP 028 PARCEL 065.00 
INFORMATION SUMMARY 

 
1. Property Owner and Applicant: Rosalea Proffitt 

 

2. Area: 3.008 acres 
 

3. Proposed Use: Substance Abuse Treatment Facility 
 

4. Projected # of Employees: 16 5. Projected School Age Population: 0 
 

6. Current Land Use Data: Acres Percent 
Vacant 3.008 100 

7. Linear Feet of Roads: 0.00 

8. Current County Zoning: A-1, General Agriculture 

9. Requested City Zoning: B-4 – Arterial Business District 
 

11. Preliminary Assessment: 
• Refuse Collection – area served by the Johnson City Regional Solid Waste 

System 
• Water Service – Unavailable 
• Sewer Service – Currently not on sewer 
• Emergency Services – police protection provided by the Washington County 

Sheriff’s Department; fire protection provided by the Washington County 
Volunteer Fire Department; and ambulance service provided by the Washington 
County / Johnson City EMS 

• Schools – area served by Washington County schools 
 

6. Comments: The property is located within the Urban Growth Boundary, adjoins 
current City limits, and annexation is requested by the property owner. The Fiscal 
Impact Analysis employs the Employment Anticipation Method, which uses 
estimates of the additional cost for each new employee across various municipal 
sectors multiplied by the anticipated increase in employees in order to determine 
the total cost and revenue differential for the proposed development. The total 
recurring net fund is estimated to be $1,301.63. This excludes capital 
improvement cost and user charges revenue for utilities such as water and sewer. 

 
It is further estimated that it will cost $33,000 to extend water, and $98,000 to 
extend sewer to the site. It should be noted that the water and sewer lines to be 
extended can potentially serve other properties in the area. 

 
12. Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of annexation, plan of services 

and assignment of RTP (Research/Technology Park) Zoning District. 



 
 

ANNEXATION FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 
EMPLOYEE ANTICIPATION APPROACH 

 VALUE 
Projected Number of employees 16 
Projected School Age Population 0 
Total Est. of Local Employees 38,945 
  

Assessed Property Valuation 700,000.00 
Total Number of Properties 1 
  

Annual Revenue  

Property Tax $4,788.00 
Licenses and Permits $304.22 
Charges for Services $1,128.98 
Fines and Forfeitures $571.06 
Intergovernmental Revenue $5,589.41 
Other Revenue $2,340.58 

Total General Revenue $14,722.25 
  

Services Costs  

Police $4,666.86 
Fire $3,204.54 
Public Works $4,851.94 
General Government $311.18 
Public Transit $386.10 

Total General Expenditure $13,420.62 
  
  

Total Net Fund Estimate - Recurring $ 1,301.63 
  
 

PUBLIC UTILITIES CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT COSTS 
Utility Estimated line Extention Cost 
Water $33,000.00 
Sewer $98,000.00 

Total $131,000.00 



ANNEXATION AREA SURVEY (SHOWN AS LOT 1) 

 



ANNEXATION REQUEST 
 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019 

 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services – Planning 

 
SUBJECT: ORD. 4710-19 - Assignment of B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) 
Zoning District to a Portion of Tax Map 028, Parcel 065.00, being certain property 
known as the “PROFFITT ANNEXATION”. Second Reading. 

SUMMARY: This is the assignment of the B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) Zoning 
District to an owner-initiated annexation of 3.008 acres of land located along Christian 
Church Rd. The site is proposed to be used for a non-residential substance abuse 
treatment facility. 

The applicant requested the B-4 Zoning District. However, following significant 
deliberation, the Planning Commission determined that the RTP Zoning District is more 
appropriate for the property at this time. The City Commission, nevertheless, voted 
unanimously in favor of the B-4 Zoning District on first reading. 

The assignment of the RTP Zoning District had been advertised in the newspaper for 
public hearing on November 21, 2019. With the approval of the B-4 Zoning District on 
first reading, the assignment of the B-4 Zoning District has been advertised for public 
hearing at third and final reading of the Ordinance to meet the fifteen days public notice 
requirement. 

The Ordinance is ready for your consideration. 

RECOMMENDATION: The Planning Commission recommended the assignment of the 
RTP Zoning District by a vote of 4 to 3. 



ORDINANCE NO. 4710-19 

(SEE PROFFITT ANNEXATION RESOLUTION) 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF JOHNSON 

CITY, TENNESSEE BEING PART OF THE APPENDIX TO ORDINANCE NO. 1519 

ENTITLED “AN ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A CODE OF LAWS AND ORDINANCES 

FOR THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE, AND TO REPEAL ALL LAWS 

AND ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH”, AND AMENDATORY 

THEREOF, BY ASSIGNING B-4 (PLANNED ARTERIAL BUSINESS) DISTRICT TO 

CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE ELEVENTH (11TH) CIVIL DISTRICT OF 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE KNOWN AS THE PROFFITT 

ANNEXATION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. That the Zoning Map of the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, 

being a part of the appendix to Ordinance No. 1519 entitled, “An Ordinance to Adopt a 

Code of Laws and Ordinances for the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, and to Repeal All 

Laws and Ordinances in Conflict Therewith,” and all ordinances supplementary thereto 

and amendatory thereof, be and the same is hereby amended and modified by assigning 

the zoning on property identified in the City of Johnson City and Washington County as 

a portion of County ID 090, Tax Map 028, Parcel 065.00, including those abutting rights-

of-way and reaching to the respective centerlines of B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) 

District. 

 

See descriptions marked “Exhibit ‘A’” and “Exhibit ‘B’” hereto. 

 
SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, That all ordinances and 

parts of ordinances in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, That this ordinance shall 

take effect from and after its passage on third and final reading and publication as required 

by law, the public welfare requiring it. 

 

PASSED ON FIRST READING                                   

PASSED ON SECOND READING                              

PASSED ON THIRD READING    



APPROVED AND SIGNED IN OPEN MEETING 

ON THE  DAY OF  , 20   
 

 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 

City Recorder 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Staff Attorney 



“EXHIBIT ‘A’” 

 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 
 



“Exhibit ‘B’” 

MAP OF PROPERTY 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019 

 
 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services – Planning 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 4713-19:  A petition to abandon a public alley located between 

218 and 222 North Broadway Street. Second Reading. 

SUMMARY: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission unanimously approved 

this right-of-way abandonment at their regular meeting of October 8, 2019.  

The applicant is Haven of Mercy Ministries, Inc. The existing public alley is approximately 

20 feet wide by 247 feet long, totaling 4,693-square feet (~0.10-acres). The purpose of 

the abandonment is to facilitate reconstruction of the Haven of Mercy thrift store that 

burned earlier this year. 

There are no public utilities or public services using the alley that would prevent 

abandonment of the right-of-way. In addition, abandonment of the right-of-way would not 

create any access impediments for adjoining or surrounding properties.  

The ordinance is ready for your consideration. 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission 

recommends approval of the requested right-of-way abandonment and associated 

ordinance as proposed by the applicant. 



ORDINANCE NO. 4713-19 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ABANDON AN ALLEY 

EXTENDING NORTHEAST FROM THE 200-BLOCK 
OF NORTH BROADWAY STREET UPON THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN AND 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH. 

 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY as follows: 

  
 SECTION I.  That an alley right-of-way extending northeast from the 
200-block of North Broadway Street of the City of Johnson City is hereby abandoned and 
returned to private property. 
 
 See description marked “Exhibit ‘A’” hereto. 
 
 SECTION II.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the Mayor is authorized to 
execute a quitclaim deed to the adjoining property owner(s) of the abandoned area shown 
on “Exhibit A” which shall be in form and content acceptable to the City Manager and Staff 
Attorney. 
 
 SECTION III.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that all laws and ordinances in 
conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION IV.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this ordinance shall take 
effect from and after its passage on third and final reading as required by law, the public 
welfare requiring it. 
 
 
 
    PASSED ON FIRST READING  11-07-2019 
 
    PASSED ON SECOND READING ___________ 
 
    PASSED ON THIRD READING ___________ 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED IN OPEN MEETING 
    

ON THE    DAY OF   , 20 _____ 
 
  
 _____________________________________________ 
    MAYOR     
ATTEST:                                           
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
City Recorder 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



“Exhibit A” 



ALLEY RIGHT OF WAY ABANDONMENT 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
APPLICATION PL201900351 
LOCATION Extends from N. Broadway St, and lies between 

properties with current Tax Map 047A, Group D, 
Parcel 007.00 owned by Haven of Mercy Ministries 
Inc; Tax Map  047A, Group D, Parcel 003.00 owned by 
Haven of Mercy Ministries Inc; and Tax Map 047A, 
Group D, Parcel 009.00 owned by Johnson 
City/Energy Authority  

PETITIONER Haven of Mercy Ministries, Inc 
 
Request 
 
The City has received a request from Haven of Mercy Ministries Inc to abandon 
the right-of-way of an alley extending from N. Broadway St. eastward, and lying 
between the properties as stated in “Location” above. 
 
The alley is 19.10ft wide and 247.42ft long. 
 

 
 

Location of Alley proposed for right-of-way abandonment 
 
 
 



Reason for Request 
Haven of Mercy Ministries Inc intends to use the fee simple of the alley as part of 
the redevelopment of the two adjoining lots to the alley for a new story building 
that will contain a thrift store on the first floor and twenty (20) residential units on 
the second floor. 
 
Current Use 
 
This alley currently serves only the Haven of Mercy Inc. properties, where it is 
used as an access way to the dumpster location for garbage pickup at the rear of 
the 218 N. Broadway St. property. There is a very steep slope at the end of the 
alley, which hinders the use of the alley as access to the adjoining Power Station. 
 
There are no visible utility lines within the alley. A certain 5ft wide water 
easement currently exists northward of the alley, adjoining the alley and outside 
of the alley ROW itself. The water line that existed in this easement for a fire 
hydrant was relocated outside of this easement some years ago. Consequently, 
the alley is not being used as access to this waterline that existed in the 
easement. 
 
Review Comments  
  
Different City Departments and utility agencies have been contacted regarding 
the request and their responses are as follows: 
 
DEPARTMENT/UTILITY AGENCY COMMENTS 

1. Water and Sewer Department No issue with abandonment 

2. Public Works/Engineering No issue with abandonment 

3. Police Department No issue with abandonment 

4. Transit Department No issue with abandonment 

5. Atmos Energy No Issue with Abandonment 

6. Century Link No issue with abandonment 

7. Fire Department No issue with abandonment 

8. Brightridge (Energy Authority) No issue with abandonment 

9. Comcast communications No issue with abandonment 

10. Century Link No issue with abandonment 

11. Charter Communications No issue with abandonment 

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends that the City of Johnson City abandons the alley right-of-way 



Alley Right-of-Way Abandonment Plat 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019 

 
 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services – Planning 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 4712-19:  A petition to rezone two parcels located at 218 and 

222 North Broadway Street, from I-2 (Heavy Industrial) and R-5 (High Density 

Residential) districts to B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) district. Second Reading. 

SUMMARY: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission unanimously approved 

this rezoning at their regular meeting of October 8, 2019.  

The applicant is Haven of Mercy Ministries, Inc. The size of both properties total 

approximately one (1) acre. The purpose of the rezoning is to allow reconstruction of the 

Haven of Mercy thrift store that burned earlier this year; plus, the applicant is proposing to 

add a 2nd floor that will contain twenty (20) residential units. The previous thrift store was 

“grandfathered” as a nonconforming use in the I-2 district. 

A Concept Plan is required for the rezoning. The submitted Concept Plan conceptually 

conforms to all requirements of the Johnson City Zoning Ordinance.  

The required Neighborhood Meeting was conducted on October 3, 2019. Staff mailed 

notification letters to all property owners within 200-ft of the subject property. A Rezoning 

notification sign was posted at the property. Staff did not receive any calls regarding this 

request. 

The ordinance is ready for your consideration. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission 

recommends approval of the requested rezoning and associated ordinance as proposed 

by the applicant. 



ORDINANCE NO. 4712-19 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE 
CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, TENNESSEE BEING PART OF THE 
APPENDIX TO ORDINANCE NO. 1519 ENTITLED “AN 
ORDINANCE TO ADOPT A CODE OF LAWS AND 
ORDINANCES FOR THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY, 
TENNESSEE, AND TO REPEAL ALL LAWS AND 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH”, AND 
AMENDATORY THEREOF, BY CHANGING FROM I-2 
(HEAVY INDUSTRIAL) DISTRICT AND R-5 (HIGH DENSITY 
RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT TO B-4 (PLANNED ARTERIAL 
BUSINESS) DISTRICT CERTAIN PROPERTIES (047A D 003.00 
AND 047A D 007.00) LOCATED AT 218 AND 222 NORTH 
BROADWAY STREET. 

  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
  SECTION 1.  That the Zoning Map of the city of Johnson City, Tennessee, 
being a part of the appendix to Ordinance No. 1519 entitled, "An Ordinance to Adopt a Code 
of Laws and Ordinances for the City of Johnson City, Tennessee, and to Repeal All Laws and 
Ordinances in Conflict Therewith," and all ordinances supplementary thereto and amendatory 
thereof, be and the same is hereby amended and modified by changing the zoning on property 
identified in the City of Johnson City and Washington County as County ID 090, Tax Map and 
Group 047A D, Parcels 003.00 and 007.00, including those abutting rights-of-way and 
reaching to the respective centerlines from I-2 (Heavy Industrial) District and R-5 (High 
Density Residential) District to B-4 (Planned Arterial Business) District. 
 
  See zoning map of the above-described property marked “Exhibit ‘A’” hereto. 
  See Concept Plan marked “Exhibit ‘B’” hereto 
  
  SECTION 2.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED That all ordinances and parts 
of ordinances in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
  SECTION 3.  BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED That this ordinance shall take 
effect from and after its passage on third and final reading and publication as required by law, 
the public welfare requiring it.    

 
PASSED ON FIRST READING  11-07-2019  
                    
PASSED ON SECOND READING     
    
PASSED ON THIRD READING        

 
 
 



 
 
APPROVED AND SIGNED IN OPEN MEETING 
    

ON THE    DAY OF   , 20 ________ 
 
  
 ________________________________________________ 
      MAYOR     
ATTEST:                                           
 
 
         
City Recorder 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
         
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



 
“Exhibit  ‘A’” 

Property Zoning Map 
 
  



 
“Exhibit  ‘B’” 
Concept Plan 

 



 
 

REZONING REQUEST #1046 
Application No. PL201900325 

218 N Broadway St. and 222 N. Broadway St.  
October 8, 2019 

 
 
PETITIONER:   Haven of Mercy Ministries, Inc. 
          
OWNER:    Haven of Mercy Ministries, Inc.  
 
REQUESTED 
ACTION:   Rezoning of properties at 218 N. Broadway and 222 N. 

Broadway St from I-2 (Heavy Industrial) to B-4 (Arterial 
Business District), and a small section of Millard St and an 
alley separating these two properties from R-5 (High Density 
Residential) to B-4. 

 
EXISTING 
LAND USE: Vacant: Site was previously used as a Haven of Mercy thrift 

store that burnt down more than 90%, thus causing the 
business to loss its legal non-conformity status as the site was 
and is zoned I-2 that does not permit retail uses.  

 
PROPOSED USE:  Haven of Mercy owns both properties and proposes to combine 

the lots into one parcel and build a one (1) story building with a 
thrift store on the first floor and twenty residential units on the 
second floor. As part of this redevelopment plan, Haven of 
Mercy has also requested the abandonment of the adjoining 
alley.  

 
A small section of Millard St to the centerline that adjoins 222 
N. Broadway St and a small portion at the terminal of the alley 
are zoned R-5 (High Density Residential). Staff requests that 
these small land areas be rezoned to B-4 for consistency. 

 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND 
LAND USES:                                
NORTH: Millard St, and single-

family residential housing 
across the road 

R-5 (High Density Residential 
District) 

NORTHWEST Gas Station B-4 (Arterial Business District) 
SOUTH: Transport vehicles parking 

area 
I-2 (Heavy Industrial District) 

EAST: Power Station I-2 (Heavy Industrial District) 
WEST: Industrial  I-2 (Heavy Industrial District) 



 
 

 
     Current Zoning Map 



 
 
 
LAND USE PLAN:  The Johnson City Land Use Plan, 2020 designates this 

property for residential development as shown below.  

 
 

Future Land Use Map 



 
 

However, there has not been an increase demand for 
residential land use in this area since 2000 when the City 
adopted the future land use plan map. Furthermore, the area 
south of 222 N. Broadway has remained industrial, while the 
area across E. Millard St that the 218 N. Broadway St property 
adjoins – to the northeast - is a single-family residential 
neighborhood. A Heavy Industrial District is incompatible with 
single family residential development. Open space and 
commercial developments are appropriate and necessary land 
uses to provide a buffer and transitional zone between the 
heavy industrial district to the south and the residential 
neighborhood to the north. 
 

 
UTILITIES: Existing water and sewer services are available and adequate 

for the proposed thrift store and residential development. 
 
 
TRANSPORTATION: 

The property is accessible from both N. Broadway St, which is 
a collector street and from E. Millard St that is a local street. 
Collector streets are suitable for access to commercial 
developments. 
 

 
PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS: 

The site’s elevation rises northward. The 218 N. Broadway St. 
property is in the floodplain (zone AE – floodplain zone with 
determined base flood elevation). The developer intends to 
locate the building on the current 222 N. Broadway St. property 
that is outside the 100-year floodplain. 

 



 

 
 

Site Aerial View with Floodplain (in blue) 
 

 
AREA ZONING COMPATIBILITY: If this property is rezoned from I-1 to B-4, it will 

permit the location of such commercial uses as restaurants, 
retail, offices, financial institutions and medical uses such as 
doctor’s offices. The car wash to the northwest of the 
properties proposed for rezoning, and the Sunoco and 
Marathon gas stations, the wine retail shop, and the 
Walgreens that are further northward are all commercial uses 
in the B-4 Zoning District that are serving as buffer and 
transitional zones between the industrial land uses west of N. 
Broadway St and the residential land uses to the east.  

 
Rezoning the property to B-4 shall not constitute spot zoning; 
it will simply be an extension of the existing B-4 District to the 
northwest of the subject properties. This B-4 District shall also 
serve as a transitional zone between the existing heavy 
industrial zoning district to the south and the residential 
neighborhood to the north. 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
Land Use Classification Map 



 
 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS: 

The petitioner has scheduled the required Neighborhood 
Meeting on October 3, 2019. Staff has received no calls from 
the public associated with this rezoning.  

 
PLAN REQUIREMENT:   

A Concept Plan is required for the rezoning, and is shown 
below. It includes a 5,600sq ft retail area and 1,400sq ft 
storage area for commercial use on the first floor and 20 
dwelling units on the second floor. 

 
 

OPTIONS:  The Planning Commission’s options are as follows: 
 

1. Approve the rezoning, and associated Concept Plan, as 
requested.  
  

2. Disapprove the rezoning and state the reasons for denial in 
writing.   

 
3. Postpone action pending the receipt of additional 

information. 
 
STAFF 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 Staff recommends APPROVAL (Option 1) based on the 

following rationale: 
 

 
1. Although the Land Use Plan has designated this area for 

residential uses, the commercial and industrial development 
pattern in the area necessitates a commercial zoning 
district at the location of this property to provide a transition 
zone and a buffering effect to the residential neighborhood 
in the northeast. 
 

2. The rezoning will be compatible with the character of the N. 
Broadway St. corridor in the area and will simply consist of 
extending southward the B-4 zoning district in the northwest 
of the property. 

 
3. The request will not create a burden on existing utilities and 

can be served with existing infrastructure.  
 



 
 

CONCEPT PLAN 

 



 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019  

 

DEPARTMENT:  Development Services – Planning 

SUBJECT:  Ordinance 4715-19 – Revisions to Title 5, Chapter 3 Hotel/Motel 
Transient Occupancy Privilege Tax. Second Reading. 

SUMMARY:  Planning Division staff has developed an ordinance revising Title 5 
– Municipal Finance & Taxation, Chapter 3 – Hotel/Motel Transient Occupancy 
Privilege Tax to include provisions for Short Term Rentals. Additional clarity is 
being proposed to ensure that Short Term Rentals are required to remit the 
same occupancy tax as hotels, motels, etc.  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Staff is recommending Approval of the proposed 
ordinance. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 4715-19 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND TITLE 5 MUNICPAL FINANCE AND TAXATION, 
CHAPTER 3 HOTEL/MOTEL TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY PRIVILEGE TAX OF 
THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE CITY OF JOHNSON CITY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 SECTION 1.  That Title 5, Chapter 3 of the Municipal Code of the City of 
Johnson City, Tennessee, Exhibit A, is amended as underlined. 

 
 
SECTION 2.   BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, That all ordinances and parts 

of ordinances in conflict herewith be and the same are hereby repealed. 
 

 
SECTION 3.   BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, That this ordinance shall take 

effect upon final passage and publication of this ordinance in a newspaper of general 
circulation, the public welfare requiring it. 

 
 
PASSED IN OPEN, PUBLIC MEETING ON 

      THE FIRST READING 11-07-2019 
      PASSED IN OPEN, PUBLIC MEETING ON 
      THE SECOND READING  

 
      PASSED IN OPEN, PUBLIC MEETING ON 
      THE THIRD READING  

 
      APPROVED AND SIGNED IN OPEN MEETING 
      ON THE   DAY OF    , 2019 
      FOLLOWING PASSAGE ON THIRD READING. 
 
 
              
      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
CITY RECORDER 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
STAFF ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

CHAPTER 3 
 

HOTEL/MOTEL TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY PRIVILEGE TAX1 

SECTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5-301. Definitions. As used in this chapter, unless the context 
otherwise requires: 

(1) "Consideration" means the consideration charged, whether or not 
received, for the occupancy in a hotel and/or short-term rental valued in money 
whether to be received in money, goods, labor or otherwise, including all 
receipts, cash, credits, property and services of any kind or nature without any 
deduction therefrom whatsoever. Nothing in this definition shall be construed 
to imply that consideration is charged when the space provided to the person 
is complimentary from the operator and no consideration is charged to or 
received from any person. 

(2) "Hotel" means any structure, or any portion of any structure, which 
is occupied or intended or designed for occupancy by transients for dwelling, 
lodging or sleeping purposes, and includes any inn, tourist camp, tourist court, 
tourist cabin, motel or any place in which rooms, lodgings or accommodations 
are furnished to transients for a consideration. 

(3) "Occupancy" means the use or possession, or the right to the use 
or possession, of any room, lodgings or accommodations in any hotel. 

(4) "Operator" means the person operating the hotel and/or short-term 
rental whether as owner, lessee or otherwise. 

(5) "Person" means any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, 
association, social club, fraternal organization, joint-stock company, corporation, 
estate, trust, receiver, trustee, syndicate or any other group or combination 
acting as a unit. 

(6) “Short-Term Rental Property (STRP) means a residential 
dwelling unit that is used and/or advertised for transient occupancy. The 
residence can be owner-occupied, on a lot with an owner-occupied residence, 
or not owner-occupied.  A rental that lasts between one and 89 days is 
considered short term.” 

 
 

1State law reference 
Hotel occupancy tax: Tennessee Code Annotated, § 67-4-1401, et seq. 

5-301. Definitions. 
5-302. Levied. 
5-303. Collected by operator; refund. 
5-304. Tax advertised as being absorbed, etc. 
5-305. Remittance of tax to city. 
5-306. Delinquency. 
5-307. Collection; disposition of funds. 
5-308. Operator's and treasurer's responsibilities. 
5-309. Powers of treasurer; taxpayer's remedies. 
5-310. Records preserved. 
 



 

(7) "Transient" means any person who exercises occupancy or is 
entitled to occupancy for any rooms, lodgings or accommodations in a hotel 
and/or short-term rental for a period of fewer than ninety (90) continuous days. 
(1985 Code, § 22-27) 

 
5-302. Levied. There is hereby levied, assessed, and imposed and shall 

be paid and collected a privilege tax upon the privilege of occupancy in any hotel 
and/or short-term rental of each transient in an amount equal to seven percent 
(7%) of the consideration charged by the operator. Of this seven percent (7%) 
privilege tax, two percent (2%) received by the City of Johnson City shall be 
used solely for tourism. Such tax is a privilege tax upon the transient 
occupying such room and is to be collected as provided by this chapter. (Ord. 
#2823, June 1989, as replaced by Ord. #4580-15, June 2015) 

 
5-303. Collected by operator; refund. (1) The tax levied in this 

chapter shall be added by each operator to each invoice prepared by the operator 
for the occupancy in his hotel and/or short-term rental and shall be given 
directly or transmitted to the transient and shall be collected by such 
operator from the transient and remitted to the city. 

(2) When a person has maintained occupancy for ninety (90) 
continuous days, he shall receive from the operator a refund or credit for the tax 
previously collected from or charged to him, and the operator shall receive credit 
for the amount of such tax if previously paid or reported to this city. (1985 Code, 
§ 22-29) 

 
5-304. Tax advertised as being absorbed, etc. No operator of a hotel 

and/or short-term rental shall advertise or state in any manner, whether 
directly or indirectly, that the tax or any part thereof will be assumed or 
absorbed by the operator or that it will not be added to the rent, or that if 
added, any part will be refunded.(1985 Code, § 22-30) 

 
5-305. Remittance of tax to city. The tax levied in this chapter shall 

be remitted by all operators who lease, rent or charge for occupancy within a 
hotel and/or short-term rental in the city to the city treasurer, such tax to be 
remitted to such officer no later than the twentieth day of each month for the 
preceding month. The operator is required to collect the tax from the 
transient at the time of the presentation of the invoice for such occupancy, 
whether prior to occupancy or after occupancy as may be the custom of the 
operator, and if credit is granted by the operator to the transient, then the 
obligation to the city for such tax shall be that of the operator. (1985 Code, § 
22-31) 

 
5-306. Delinquency. Taxes under this chapter, collected by an operator, 

which are not remitted to the city treasurer on or before the due dates are 
delinquent. An operator shall be liable for interest on such delinquent taxes 
from the due date at the rate of twelve (12) percent per annum, and in addition, 



a penalty of one (1) percent for each month or fraction thereof such taxes are 
delinquent. Such interest and penalty shall become a part of the tax. Each 
occurrence of willful refusal of an operator to collect or remit the tax or willful 
refusal of an operator to collect or remit the tax or willful refusal of a transient 
to pay the tax imposed is declared to be unlawful and shall be punishable upon 
conviction by a fine not in excess of fifty dollars ($50.00).  (1985 Code, § 22-32) 

 
5-307. Collection; disposition of funds. The city treasurer is hereby 

charged with the duty of collection of the tax levied in this chapter and shall 
place the proceeds of  such  tax in  the municipal general  fund.   (1985  Code, 
§ 22-33) 

 
5-308. Operator's and treasurer's responsibilities. A monthly tax 

return under oath shall be filed with the city treasurer by the operator with 
such number of copies thereof as the city treasurer may reasonably require for 
the collection of such tax. The report of the operator shall include such facts and 
information as may be deemed reasonable for the verification of the tax due. 
The form of such report shall be developed by the city treasurer and approved 
by the board of commissioners prior to use. The city treasurer shall audit each 
operator in the city at least once per year and shall report on the audits made 
on a quarterly basis to the board of commissioners. (1985 Code, § 22-34) 

 
5-309. Powers of treasurer; taxpayer's remedies. (1) The city 

treasurer, in administering and enforcing the provisions of this chapter, shall 
have those powers and duties with respect to collecting taxes as are provided in 
Tennessee Code Annotated, title 67, or otherwise provided by law for county 
clerks. 

(2) Upon any claim of illegal assessment and collection, the taxpayer 
shall have the remedy provided in Tennessee Code Annotated, § 67-1-901 et 
seq., it being the intent of this chapter that the provisions of law which apply to 
the recovery of state taxes illegally assessed and collected shall also apply to the 
tax levied under the authority of this chapter. The city treasurer shall also 
possess those powers and duties provided in Tennessee Code Annotated, 
§ 67-1-707(b), for county clerks with respect to the adjustment and settlement 
with taxpayers of all errors of taxes collected by him under authority of this 
chapter and to direct the refunding of same. Notice of any tax paid under 
protest shall be given to the city treasurer and any suit may be brought for 
recovery of such tax paid under protest by filing the same against the city 
recorder-treasurer. (1985 Code, § 22-35) 

 
5-310. Records preserved. It shall be the duty of every operator liable 

for the collection and payment to the city of the tax levied by this chapter to 
keep and preserve for a period of three (3) years all records as may be necessary 
to determine the amount of such tax as he may have been liable for the 
collection of and payment to this city, which records the city treasurer shall have 
right to inspect at all reasonable times. (1985 Code, § 22-36) 



Short-Term Rentals in Selected Tennessee Cities

MTAS Research and Information Center Survey     |     October 2019

City Email
Do you have an 

ordinance regulating 
short-term rentals?

Comments: In what districts of your city are short-term 
rentals allowed?

Any special 
building code 
requirements 
on short-term 

rentals?

If so, what are they?
Limit on 

number of 
occupants?

Limit on 
number of 
days for a 

stay?

If so, what is 
limit on days?

Permit 
Required?

Cost of the 
permit?

Bartlett ktaylor@cityofbartlett.org Yes - they are regulated 
through a zoning ordinance Residential zoning districts Yes Fire and Life Safety Codes No Yes 30 Yes $75 new/$50 

renewal

Collierville jcravens@colliervilletn.gov Yes - they are regulated 
through a zoning ordinance We prohibit short-term rentals in all zoning districts in Collierville.

Cookeville jam@cookeville-tn.gov
Yes - they are regulated 

through a zoning 
ordinances

We permit Short-Term Rentals in two (2) ways.  In some of our 
single-family residential districts, short-term rentals are allowed 
as a use on appeal (special exception) as Bed and Breakfast 
Homes.  These are required to be owner or operator occupied.
Short-term rentals are permitted in multi-family residential 
districts and commercial districts as a use by right, with no 
owner/operator occupancy requirement.  

Bed and Breakfast homes - Single-family residential 
districts (RS20, Rs15, and RS10)
Short-Term Rentals - Multi-family residential districts 
(RM8, RM14, Planned Residential District, PRD) 
Commercial Districts (CBD, CN, CL, CG), Medical 
Services (MS), University (UNV).  

Yes

Required to have an inspection, require functional smoke detectors in rooms 
and outside of rooms, require five (5) pound ABC fire extinguisher, each 
sleeping room must have secondary means of egress.  Parking must be 
sufficient.  

Yes, Max of Two 
(2) adults and 

two (2) children 
per sleeping 

room.

Yes <30 days Yes $100 permit, $50 
renewal (annual)

Hendersonville kfree@hvilletn.org Yes - they are regulated 
through a zoning ordinance

Short-term rentals, renting out the entire home are restricted to 
certain commercial zones.  Renting out a room in your home 
while you are living there is allowed in all zones.

Only Commercial and Old Town Commercial, not 
allowed in residential districts. No No Yes 30 No

Lebanon paul.corder@lebanontn.org Yes - they are regulated 
through a zoning ordinance

Short Term rentals are handled through the Home Occupation 
regulations.  The properties main use has to be a residence and 
the Short-Term Rental has to be a subordinate use.

Any Residential district.  In commercial districts they are 
treated like hotels. No No No N/A No N/A

Maryville amluckie@maryville-tn.gov Yes - they are regulated 
through a zoning ordinance Zones that are primarily non-residential Yes Building must already be approved for residential occupancy, but if so, there 

are no special requirements.

Yes, 2 per bed 
but not to exceed 

12 occupants 
total

No Yes $300 initial/ $100 
annual renewal

Morristown sneilson@mymorristown.com Yes - they are regulated 
through a zoning ordinance

Owner occupied units are allowed in all districts where 
single-family is allowed with the exception of R-1 which 
is are large lot single-family district.
Non-owner occupied units are allowed in any multi-
family,  commercial, or professional office district

Yes Smoke Alarms, Carbon Monoxide Detectors, Fire Extinguishers, Inspections

Yes, shall not 
exceed more 
than twice the 

number of 
bedrooms plus 

four.

Yes 30 days Yes $50

Spring Hill vlay@springhilltn.org
Yes - they are regulated 

through a separate 
ordinance

https://library.municode.com/tn/franklin/codes/code_of_ordinance
s?nodeId=PTIICOOR_TIT13PRMARE_CH2SHTEVARE
TITLE 13 CHAPTER 2

Allowed only in the following Base Zoning Districts:  AG, 
ER, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-6, SD-R, SD-X, OR, and CC 
(Check the online Franklin Zoning Map at 
www.franklintn.gov)

Yes
Approval of the STVR does not grant approval of violations of the International 
Building Code, Residential Code, or Fire Code.
Fire Alarm Inspection conducted by Building Inspector.

Yes, 10 Yes 21 Yes $15.00



Short-Term Rentals in Selected Tennessee Cities

MTAS Research and Information Center Survey     |     October 2019

City Email Do you have an ordinance 
regulating short-term rentals?

Columbia paul@columbiatn.com No
Gallatin james.fenton@gallatintn.gov No
Jackson spilant@cityofjackson.net No

Kingsport markhaga@kingsporttn.gov No
Oak Ridge wblasius@oakridgetn.gov No

Bristol tbeavers@bristoltn.org No



Availability in 2020 1/28-1/29 4/1-4/2 9/15-9/16

Johnson City 45 (36) 48 (32) 27 (17)

Bristol 68 (49) 56 (47) 31 (23)

Kingsport 15 (14) 16 (15) 7 (4)

(#) = Entire Units (Houses / Townhouses)

Appalachian Highlands Short Term Rental Comparison

+ Totals include Airbnb, VRBO, Craigslist. Homeaway and 

other sites are included in VRBO listings. 

+ Hotel listings excluded



 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES 

THIRD READING 
 

 

 



 

AGENDA SUMMARY 
November 21, 2019 

 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services – Planning 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 4686-19 – to amend the Municipal Code of the City of Johnson City related 

to Shared Mobility Operators and Shared Mobility Platforms. 

Third Reading. 
 
SUMMARY: The Johnson City Regional Planning Commission is not required to provide a 

recommendation on this code amendment. 

This is a request to amend the ‘Bicycles’ section of the City Code for the purpose of installing 

regulatory provisions that address short-term bicycle and motorized scooter rentals, commonly 

referred to as “Shared Mobility.” 

In preparation for first reading, staff drafted an ordinance that accommodated all forms of 

Shared Mobility, but the details associated with permitting and operating regulations would 

come later; in turn, giving the Commission the opportunity to discuss the proposal at a policy 

level before deep-diving into regulatory specifics. 

Since then, staff has received direction to revise the original ordinance to limit Shared Mobility 

permissions to that of bicycles only. All new amendments to the proposed strikethrough and 

underline are highlighted and the amended text for Third Reading is identified as “Exhibit A – 

AMENDED for Third Reading.” 

The ordinance is ready for your consideration. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends approval. 



“Exhibit A” – AMENDED for Third Reading 

 

1 

 

 

TITLE 15 
 

MOTOR VEHICLES, TRAFFIC AND PARKING 
 

CHAPTER 1 

MISCELLANEOUS 

15-101. Definitions. 
 

(2.1) “Bicycle, electric-assisted.” Also known as an “e-bike,” an electric-assisted 
bicycle is a type of bicycle that has two (2) or three (3) wheels, a saddle, fully operable pedals 
for human propulsion, an integrated electric (not gas) motor with a maximum output of 750 
watts, and is divided into three (3) classifications: 

(a) Class 1. A class 1 electric-assisted bicycle provides assistance only when the rider 
is pedaling (no built-in throttle), and that ceases to provide assistance when the bicycle reaches 
the speed of 20 miles per hour. 

(b) Class 2. A class 2 electric-assisted bicycle, also known as a “low-speed throttle- 
 assisted electric bicycle” is a bicycle equipped with an electric motor that may be used 
exclusively to propel the bicycle, without pedaling, and that is not capable of providing 
assistance when the bicycle reaches the speed of 20 miles per hour. 

(c) Class 3. A class 3 electric-assisted bicycle, also known as a “speed pedal-assisted 
 electric bicycle” is a bicycle equipped with an electric motor that provides assistance only when 
the rider is pedaling, and that ceases to provide assistance when the bicycle reaches the speed of 
28 miles per hour, and is equipped with a speedometer. 

 

(3) "Bicycle lane, conventional." A portion of a roadway which has been designated 
for the exclusive use of bicycles. 

 

(3.1) “Bicycle lane, protected.” A portion of, or adjacent to, the roadway which has 
been designated for the exclusive use of bicycles and has some physical, stationary, or vertical 
separation between moving motor vehicle traffic and the bicycle lane. Examples of vertical 
separation include, but are not limited to, plastic posts, bollards, curbs, planters, raised bumps, or 
parked cars. Protected bicycle lanes can be at street level or raised, either to sidewalk level or a 
level between the street and sidewalk level. 

 

  (15) “Motor vehicle.” Every vehicle which is self-propelled, excluding electric 
scooters, motorized bicycles as defined in by Title 55 (Motor and Other Vehicles) of the 
Tennessee Code Annotated, § 55-8-101, and every vehicle which is propelled by electric power 
obtained from overhead trolley wires, but not operated upon rails. 



“Exhibit A” – AMENDED for Third Reading 

 

2 

 

 

 
(16) “Motorcycle.” Every motor vehicle having a seat or saddle for the use of the rider 

and designed to travel on not more than three (3) wheels in contact with the ground, but 
excluding a tractor or motorized bicycle, as defined in by Title 55 (Motor and Other Vehicles) of 
the Tennessee Code Annotated, § 55-8-101. 

 

(18.1) “Operator.” For purposes of this title, an operator is a corporation, firm, joint 
venture, limited liability company, partnership, person, or other organized entity that operates a 
shared mobility platform, whether for profit or not for profit. 

 

  (29.1) “Shared Mobile Device.” For purposes of this title, a shared mobile device is only 
a bicycle or electric-assisted bicycle, designed specifically for shared-use and deployed by 
shared mobility operators. 

 

(29.2) “Shared Mobility.” Shared mobility is a network or system of shared mobile 
devices, offered for rent in short time increments from unstaffed, self-service docking locations, 
and operated within the public right-of-way, that provides increased mobility options over short 
distances in urban areas. 

 

  (29.3) “Shared Mobility Zone.” For purposes of this title, a shared mobility zone is an 
area generally identified between East Tennessee State University, the Veterans Administration 
medical complex and downtown, and identified on mapping that is managed and stored by city 
geographic information systems. 



“Exhibit A” – AMENDED for Third Reading 

 

3 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 15 
 

BICYCLES AND SHARED MOBILITY 
 

SECTION 
15-1501. Applicability. 
15-1502. Responsibility of parents for children's violations. 
15-1503. Bicycle riders subject to vehicle regulations. 
15-1504. Obedience to traffic-control devices. 
15-1505. Operating a bicycle on or adjacent to a roadway. 
15-1506. Operating a bicycle on a bikeway multi-use trail. 
15-1507. Operating a bicycle on a sidewalk. 
15-1508. Emerging from an alley, driveway, or building. 
15-1509. Driver and passengers. 
15-1510. Warning device. 
15-1511. Hitching prohibited. 
15-1512. Speed. 
15-1513. Carrying articles. 
15-1514. Lights and reflectors. 
15-1515. Brakes. 
15-1516. Bicycle pParking. 
15-1517. Shared Mobility.  

 

15-1501. Applicability. This chapter shall apply to all multi-use trails, sidewalks, and 
roadways; and to all persons using the aforementioned multi-use trails, sidewalks, and roadways. 
(Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1502. Responsibility of parents for children's violations. The parent of any minor 

child and the guardian of any ward shall not authorize or knowingly permit any such child or 
ward to violate any of the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1503. Bicycle riders subject to vehicle regulations. Every person riding a bicycle 

upon a roadway shall be granted all of the rights and shall be subject to all of the duties 
applicable to the driver of a vehicle by the laws of this state declaring rules of the road applicable 
to vehicles or the traffic laws of this city applicable to the driver of a vehicle, except as to those 
provisions of laws and ordinances which by their nature can have no application to bicycles. 
(Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1504. Obedience to traffic-control devices. (1) Any person operating a bicycle shall 

obey the instructions of official traffic-control signals, signs, and other control devices applicable 
to vehicles, unless otherwise directed by a public safety officer. 

(2) Whenever authorized signs are erected indicating that no right or left turn is 
permitted, no person operating a bicycle shall disobey the direction of any such sign, except 
where such person dismounts from the bicycle to make any such turn, in which event such 
person shall then obey the regulations applicable to pedestrians. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 



“Exhibit A” – AMENDED for Third Reading 

 

4 

 

 

 
15-1505. Operating a bicycle on or adjacent to a roadway. (1) When a bicycle lane is 

not available, all persons operating a bicycle upon a an arterial, collector, or local roadway shall 
ride on the right side of the road, moving in the same direction as motor vehicle traffic. All 
persons operating bicycles upon a road way shall not ride more than two (2) abreast when in 
traffic. 

(2) Convention Bicycle/Bike Lane (CBL): When a bicycle conventional bike lane is 
available, all persons operating a bicycle shall ride in the bicycle conventional bike lane in the 
same direction as vehicular traffic; providing however, that the operator may move out of the 
bicycle lane to make a left or right turn, or to avoid a hazardous condition. All persons entering a 
bicycle conventional bike lane shall yield the right-of-way to all bicycles already in the bicycle 
lane. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

(3) Protected Bicycle/Bike Lane (PBL): When a protected bike lane is available, all 
persons operating a bicycle shall ride in the protected bike lane in the appropriate direction and 
manner as indicated by signage or pavement markings. All persons entering a protected bike lane 
shall yield the right-of-way to all bicycles already in the lane, and all bicycle movements in and 
out of protected bike lanes shall occur at designated openings in the lane. 

 

15-1506. Operating a bicycle on a bikeway multi-use trail. All persons operating a 
bicycle or class 1 e-bike on a bikeway multi-use trail shall ride on the right side of the bikeway 
multi-use trail; providing however, that the operator may move left to make a left turn, to avoid a 
hazardous condition, or to pass a pedestrian or slower moving bicycle object. Due care shall be 
taken and an audible signal given when passing a pedestrian or slower moving bicycle object. 
(Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) Any class 2 and class 3 e-bikes are prohibited from operating on multi- 
use trails. 

 

15-1507. Operating a bicycle on a sidewalk. (1) No person over the age of sixteen (16) 
shall operate a bicycle on a sidewalk located on a local street unless that person is supervising a 
child while riding. All persons may operate a bicycle on an arterial or collector street. 

(2) All persons operating a bicycle on a sidewalk shall yield the right-of-way to any 
pedestrian and shall give an audible signal before passing said pedestrian. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 
1997) 

(3) No e-bike shall be operated on any sidewalk unless the assisting motor is disabled and 
the person riding the e-bike is supervising a child while riding. 

 

15-1508. Emerging from an alley, driveway, or building. All persons operating a 
bicycle emerging from an alley, driveway, or building shall upon approaching a sidewalk or 
roadway yield the right-of-way to all pedestrians and automobiles. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1509. Driver and passengers. All persons riding on a bicycle shall be on a regular 

seat. Extra riders shall not be permitted to ride on a bicycle in a manner other than the bicycle or 
its equipment was designed. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1510. Warning device. No person shall operate a bicycle unless it is equipped with a 

bell or other device capable of giving a signal audible for a distance of at least one hundred (100) 



“Exhibit A” – AMENDED for Third Reading 

 

5 

 

 

feet, except that a bicycle shall not be equipped with nor shall any person use upon a bicycle any 
siren or whistle. 
(Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1511. Hitching prohibited. No person operating a bicycle shall attach oneself to a 

vehicle or hold onto another vehicle while it is moving. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 
 

15-1512. Speed. No person shall operate a bicycle at a speed greater than is reasonable 
and prudent under the existing conditions, and in no case greater than the applicable posted speed 
limit. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1513. Carrying articles. No person operating a bicycle shall carry any package, 

bundle, or article which prevents the operator from keeping at least one (1) hand upon the 
handlebars. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 
15-1514. Lights and reflectors. No person shall operate a bicycle at nighttime unless the 

bicycle or operator is equipped with a white light visible from a distance of at least five hundred 
(500) feet to the front of the bicycle and red or amber light, flashing light, or reflector, visible 
from a distance of at least five hundred (500) feet to the rear of the bicycle. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 
1997) 

 
15-1515. Brakes. All bicycles shall be equipped with mechanical brakes suitable of 

bringing the bicycle to a quick stop. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 
 

15-1516. Bicycle pParking. No person shall park a bicycle on a multi-use trail, sidewalk, 
or roadway, in such a fashion that it obstructs any other automobiles, bicycles, or pedestrian 
lawful form of traffic. (Ord. #3443, Jan. 1997) 

 

15-1517. Shared Mobility. 
(1) General Operating Regulations. 

(a) Any operator proposing a shared mobility platform within the City shall first 
obtain a business license and any applicable development permits 

(b) Shared mobility docking stations shall be installed on private property and 
only within the shared mobility zone. Accompanying shared mobile devices may be used 
as allowed by this chapter only within the shared mobility zone. 

(c) Permittees Operators agree that the City is not responsible for educating users 
regarding applicable laws. The City is not responsible for educating users on the use and 
operation of any shared mobile device. Permittees Operators agree to educate users 
regarding all applicable laws and to instruct users to comply with all applicable laws. 
(2) Indemnification of Shared Mobility platforms. Any operator shall indemnify and hold 

harmless the City of Johnson City from any claims arising from the provision or use of shared 
mobility. 

(3) Abandonment. Any shared mobile device that is abandoned or left unattended within 
the public right-of-way for a period greater than twelve (12) hours may be removed and 
impounded by the City at the expense of the permittee. 



 

 

AGENDA SUMMARY 

November 21, 2019 

 

 

Department: Administration 

 

Subject: 

 

Ordinance 4707-19 

Consideration of an ordinance to increase the City 

Manager’s spending authority (third reading) 

 

Summary:   

 

In 2012, the Commission increased the City Manager’s spending authority from $10,000 to 

$25,000.  This proposed ordinance will increase the authority to $50,000.  Where 

applicable, items and services above $25,000 in value will continue to be purchased 

through a formal, competitive request for proposal (RFP)/bid process, which requires 

public advertising and public bid opening.  Items above $50,000 will be included on 

Commission agendas for approval.  The proposed ordinance has been reviewed by Legal 

and is attached for your review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommended Action:     Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance. 

 







































 

 

 

 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

PUBLIC INPUT 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

INFORMATION  ITEMS 

 
 

 

 



 

 

  

CHECKS SIGNED BY THE CITY MANAGER OVER $25,000 

 

SINCE LAST AGENDA PACKET DELIVERY 

 

 

  

 

 

11-7-19 

 

Federal Transit Administration 

 (Repayment of ECHO Overdraw) 

Transit $50,495.77 

 

11-8-19 

 

Mountain States Medical Group 

 (Employer Health Services) 

Human Resources $40,005.47 

 

11-13-19 

 

Waste Management Services Solid Waste $97,176.00 

 

11-13-19 

 

Waste Management Services Solid Waste $247,486.92 

 



































 
 

 
AGENDA SUMMARY 

November 21, 2019 
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services- Planning 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:   Consider one (1) appointment to the Johnson City Historic Zoning 
Commission. 

 
 

SUMMARY: There is currently one (1) vacancy within the Johnson City 
Historic Zoning Commission.  Appointment to the Historic Zoning 
Commission is a five-year term. The position is preferable for an Architect 
who must be a resident of Johnson City. The appointment is to fill a vacancy 
left by Mr. Tom Mozen.  Mr. Mozen term expired in April of 2019. All 
appointments are made by the Board of Commissioners.  This term will 
expire in December of 2024. 



1 
 

 
 

 
TO: Pete Peterson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:  Consider one (1) appointment to the Johnson City Historic Zoning Commission. 
 
DATE: November 21, 2019 
 
SUMMARY: There is currently one (1)  vacancy within the Johnson City Historic Zoning 
Commission.  Appointment to the Historic Zoning Commission is a five year term. This 
position is preferably for a licensed architect. The appointment is to fill vacancy left by Mr. 
Tom Mozen when his term expired. Mr. Mozen has not expressed an interest to continue his 
service with the Commission.  This appointment is made by the Board of Commissioners.  
This term will expire in December of 2024. 
 
The city has advertised the vacancy in the Johnson City Press for thirty (30) days and has 
received one (1) application. 
 
The one (1) applicant is: 
 
Ms. Megan Tewell – Ms. Tewell is a practicing public history professional with a graduate 
degree in the discipline, as well as many years of experience in the field. She received a 
Master of Arts degree in public history from North Carolina State University in 2016, and is 
currently a PhD candidate in their public history doctoral program. She is also employed as 
the Programming Coordinator at the Heritage Alliance of Northeast Tennessee & Southwest 
Virginia, a local historical organization. She has professional experiences at a variety of other 
institutions, including the City of Raleigh Museum, the Indiana State Museum, Indiana State 
Archives, Kentucky Historical society, and the North Carolina Craft Beverage Museum. She is 
especially interested in the relationship between historic preservation and downtown 
revitalization, as well as the sustainable reuse of historic structures.  MS. Tewell has lived in 
the city for two (2) years.  
 
 
The current members of the Historic Zoning Commission are: 
 
1.  Mr. Nathan Brand – Mr. Brand is the present chairman of the Historic Zoning 
Commission.  He was appointed in July of 2018 and his term will end July , 2023.  Mr. 
Brand has 92% attendance.  
 
2. Col. Paul Williamson – Col. Williamson is the current Planning Commission 
representative and he is serving as the Vice-Chairman on the Historic Zoning 
Commission.  He has been in that position since September of 2018 and will serve 
until replaced by the Planning Commission.  Col. Williamson has 91% attendance.  
 
3.  Ms. Liz Biosca – Ms. Biosca has served on the Historic Zoning Commission since 
2001.  Her term will expire in December of 2020.  Ms. Biosca has 45% attendance.  
 



2 
 

4.  Mr. Wesley Forsythe – Mr. Forsythe has served on the Historic Zoning Commission 
since 2016.  His term will expire in December of 2021.  Mr. Forsythe has 100% 
attendance.  
 
5.  Mr. Hal Hunter – Mr. Hunter has served on the Historic Zoning Commission since 
April of 2015.  Mr. Hunters term will expire in April of 2020.  Mr. Hunter has 87% 
attendance.  
 
6.  Ms. Valda Jones – Ms. Jones has served on the Historic Zoning Commission since 
its inception in 1998.  Mrs. Jones most recent term will expire in December of 2022.  
Ms. Jones has 75% attendance.   
 
7.  Mr. Tom Mozen – Mr. Mozen is the current architect on the Historic Zoning 
Commission.  He has served on the Commission since April of 2014.  Mr. Mozens term 
is currently expired and he does not wish to be reappointed.  Mr. Mozen has 73% 
attendance.  

 
 
 



From: Keenan, Sheri
To: Lawrence, Nicole
Subject: FW: Board and Commission Service Application [#682]
Date: Thursday, October 31, 2019 2:01:32 PM

 

From: City of Johnson City <no-reply@wufoo.com> 
Sent: Thursday, October 31, 2019 1:59 PM
To: Sagona, Lisa <lsagona@johnsoncitytn.org>; Greene, Beth <bgreene@johnsoncitytn.org>;
Keenan, Sheri <skeenan@johnsoncitytn.org>
Subject: Board and Commission Service Application [#682]
 

Name * Megan Tewell

Address
405 West Locust Street 
Johnson City, TN 37604 
United States

Home Phone Number (919) 675-5194

Email address at which to reach you * mncullen@ncsu.edu

Length of residence in Johnson City 2

Board on which you are interested in
serving [click on arrow to drop down
list] *

HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION

Please list qualifications and particular areas of interest:

I am a practicing public history professional with a graduate degree in the discipline, as well as many
years of experience in the field. I received a Master of Arts degree in public history from North
Carolina State University in 2016, and I am currently a PhD candidate in their public history doctoral
program. I am also employed as the Programming Coordinator at the Heritage Alliance of Northeast
Tennessee & Southwest Virginia, a local historical organization, although I have professional
experiences at a variety of other institutions, including the City of Raleigh Museum, the Indiana State
Museum, Indiana State Archives, Kentucky Historical society, the North Carolina Craft Beverage
Museum, and more. As a public history professional, I am deeply passionate about historic
preservation, historic reuse, community engagement, and local economic development. I am
especially interested in the relationship between historic preservation and downtown revitalization,
as well as the sustainable reuse of historic structures. I believe that my interest in and experiences
with public history would allow me to bring a distinct perspective to this position.

Please describe any previous experience serving on boards, if applicable:

Although I have never personally served on a municipal board, I have worked in various leadership
and service capacities at different organizations. For instance, I am part of a number of professional
committees and working groups, including the Advocacy Committee of the National Council of
Public History, a team that works to set and enforce professional standards, as well as direct our
organization’s mission. I have also acted as an independent consultant for numerous nonprofits,
including the Historic Wilmington Foundation, an organization dedicated to historic preservation on
the coast of North Carolina. In terms of service, I have volunteered my time, effort, and expertise in

mailto:skeenan@johnsoncitytn.org
mailto:nlawrence@johnsoncitytn.org
http://maps.google.com/?q=405%20West%20Locust%20Street++Johnson%20City+TN+37604+United%20States
mailto:mncullen@ncsu.edu


a number of roles including copy-editor, educator, pubic relations coordinator, grant writer, and
more. Additionally, I am currently the co-editor of Theory and Practice: The Emerging Museum
Professionals Journal, and in that position I coordinate with various parties (authors, publishers,
reviewers, and editorial staff), as well as organize deadlines and make executive decisions. Lastly, in
my position with the Heritage Alliance, I work directly with several board members on various
projects and programs. I strongly believe that collaborating with these organizations, as well as local
governments, nonprofits, and other institutions, has prepared me to step into a board position
myself. Thus, despite the fact that I have not yet served on a municipal board, I feel well equipped to
meet the responsibilities of the role given my past experiences, and I would be honored by the
chance to serve my community in this capacity.

Date Thursday, October 31, 2019

This email originated from outside of Johnson City's email servers. Do not
open attachments or click on links unless you recognize the sender and

know the content is safe.

Think green: Only print this e-mail and any attachment if necessary.



804-240-6468

423-612-6505               Attendance 87%

Board Appointments   Updated July 2019

Historic Zoning Commission 

(Members are appointed by the City Commission)

Phone Number: 434-6059

Meeting Times

Email Address: mmanley@cityofjohnsoncitytn.org

4th Tuesday @ 5:30 p.m.

Commission Chambers

Appointment Term:  Five (5) Year Term

Staff/Contact Person: Matthew Manley

Initial Appointment Date: 

Johnson City, Tn. 37604 Current Expiration Date: July 2023

P.O. Box 3188 Last Reappointment Date:

Johnson City, Tn 37602 Current Expiration Date: PC Rep

Initial Appointment Date: September 2018Paul Williamson

423-430-5138

hjhunter1839@gmail.com

Tom Mozen Initial Appointment Date: April 2014

Hal Hunter Initial Appointment Date: April 2015

512 Maple St. Last Reappointment Date:

Johnson City, Tn. 37604 Current Expiration Date: July 2019

Johnson City, Tn. 37601 Current Expiration Date:

mozentom@gmail.com                                         Attendance 73%

December 2022

Current Expiration Date: July 2020

423-833-7434

Name & Address Appointment Information

Wesley Forsythe Initial Appointment Date: December 2016

brand.nate@gmail.com                                         Attendance 92%

July 2018Nathan Brand

417 W. Pine St. Last Reappointment Date:

Initial Appointment Date:Liz Biosca

paultommy1@yahoo.com                                Attendnace 91%423-946-0105   

423-306-5432

December 2001

ehbiosca@hotmail.com                                     Attendance 45%

wfor@yahoo.com                                                 Attendnace 100%

Valda Jones Initial Appointment Date: December 1998

Last Reappointment Date: December 2015

1008 King Richard Blvd. Last Reappointment Date:

Johnson City, Tn.  37604 Current Expiration Date:

824 E. Myrtle Ave. Last Reappointment Date: December 2017

orchardpl@charter.net                                      Attendnance 75%423-647-3911

832 W. Locust St. Last Reappointment Date:

December 2021

Johnson City, Tn. 37601 Current Expiration Date: December 2020

807 Mountain View Cir. S.

Johnson City, Tn. 37601

mailto:mmanley@cityofjohnsoncitytn.org
mailto:hjhunter1839@gmail.com
mailto:mozentom@gmail.com%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20Attendance%2073%25
mailto:brand.nate@gmail.com%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20Attendance%2092%25
mailto:paultommy1@yahoo.com%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20Attendnace%2091%25
mailto:ehbiosca@hotmail.com%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20Attendance%2045%25
mailto:wfor@yahoo.com%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20Attendnace%20100%25
mailto:orchardpl@charter.net%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20%20Attendnance%2075%25











































	CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
	     I.  CALL TO ORDER BY THE MAYOR
	A.  Invocation - Dr. Vic Young, Pastor, Fountain of Life Bible Church
	B.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

	    II.  APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES
	A.  City Commission Meeting:  November 7, 2019

	   III.  PROCLAMATIONS-RESOLUTIONS-PRESENTATIONS
	A.  Proclamation:  Giving Tuesday
	B.  Turkey Pardon & Turkey Trot Presentation

	   IV.  LICENSES
	A.  Beer License Application:  Stellar Acquisitions, LLC d/b/a Stellar Pizzeria

	    V.  STREET CLOSURES
	A.  December 6, 2019:  Johnson City Christmas Tree Lighting 

	   VI.  CONSENT AGENDA
	A.  GENERAL
	   i.  Declare certain vehicles/equipment as surplus (Purchasing Department)     
	  ii.  S&ME Task Order #8:  K2D Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation (Water/Sewer) 
	 iii.  Lower Brush Creek Interceptor Project:  State Revolving Fund Program Project Loan (Water/Sewer) 

	B.  INVOICES
	    i.  Final Payment:  Goins Rash Cain, Inc. ~ Langston High School Project
	   ii.  Final Payment:  Nor-Well Company, Inc. ~ Transit Center HVAC Replacement 
	  iii.  Final Payment:  Eskola, LLC ~ TVA Credit Union Ballpark Field House & Maintenance Building Asphalt Roof Replacement
	 iiii.  Final Payment:  Lloyd's Electric Service, Inc. ~ Freedom Hall Electrical Road Show Switch Replacement 


	  VII.  ORDINANCES - SECOND READING
	A.  Ordinance 4711-19:  Property Rezoning @ 3230 Greenwood Drive
	B.  Resolution:  Proffitt Annexation 
	C.  Ordinance 4710-19:  Assign Zoning for Proffitt Annexation
	D.  Ordinance 4713-19:  Public Alley Abandonment between 218 & 222 North Broadway Street
	E.  Ordinance 4712-19:  Rezoning of parcels at 218 & 222 North Broadway Street
	F.  Ordinance 4715-19:  Hotel/Motel Transient Occupancy Privilege Tax

	 VIII.  ORDINANCES - THIRD READING
	A.  Ordinance 4686-19  Amend Municipal Code related to Shared Mobility Operators & Shared Mobility Platforms 
	B.  Ordinance 4707-19  Increase City Manager's Spending Authority
	C.  Ordinance 4708-19  Repeal Existing Animal Control Ordinance and Approve New Ordinance

	   IX.  CITY MANAGER'S REPORT 
	    X.  PUBLIC INPUT
	   XI.  ADJOURNMENT
	  XII.  INFORMATION ITEMS
	A.  Checks signed by the City Manager over $25,000
	B.  Appointment of Employees
	C.  Monthly Report:  Construction Project Report ~ November 2019
	D.  Monthly Report: Gas & Diesel Fuel Summary ~ October 2019
	E.  Monthly Report:  Wastewater Treatment Plant Compliance Reports ~ September 2019
	F.  Appointment:  Historic Zoning Commission ~ One-(1) Appointment
	G.  Appointment:  Senior Center Foundation Board ~ Eight-(8) Appointments
	H.  Appointment:  Senior Services Advisory Council ~ Three-(3) Appointments




